Public Document Pack

MEETING:

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL

DATE:

Friday 11th March, 2022

TIME:

10.00 am

VENUE:

REMOTE

DECISION MAKER:

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION
PANEL
Councillor Lappin
Councillor Byrom
Councillor Dutton
Councillor Grace

COMMITTEE OFFICER:
Telephone:
Fax:
E-mail:

Jayne Vincent
Consultation, Engagement and
Performance Officer
0151 934 3840
Jayne.vincentl@sefton.gov.uk

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions,
which will be notified on the Forward Plan. Items marked with an * on the
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: ● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and
Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater
● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards
If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

AGENDA
Items marked with an * involve key decisions
Item
No.

Subject/Author(s)

1.

Welcome and apologies

2.

Declarations of Interest

Wards Affected

Members are requested at a meeting where a
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal
interest arises, which is not already included in
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare
any interests that relate to an item on the
agenda.
Where a Member discloses a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from
the meeting room, including from the public
gallery, during the whole consideration of any
item of business in which he/she has an
interest, except where he/she is permitted to
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.
Where a Member discloses a personal interest
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring
Officer or staff member representing the
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the
Member should withdraw from the meeting
room, including from the public gallery, during
the whole consideration of any item of business
in which he/she has an interest or whether the
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision.
3.

Minutes of meeting held on Friday 4th
February 2022

(Pages 5 14)

4.

Matters Arising

5.

Sefton Housing Strategy 2022 - 2027
(Presentation at Panel)

(Pages 15 30)

6.

Feedback and Evaluation report - Revision
of the Gambling Act 2005, Statement of
Licensing Policy

(Pages 31 36)

7.

Feedback and Evaluation report - Allotment
Consultation

(Pages 37 68)

8.

Proposal to undertake Public Engagement
and Consultation Activity - Re-designation
of Selective and Additional (HMO) Licensing
Schemes

(Pages 69 80)

9.

Proposal to undertake Public Engagement
and Consultation Activity - Botanic Gardens

(Pages 81 92)

10.

Proposal to undertake Public Engagement
and Consultation Activity - Junction
improvement at A59, Kenyon's Lane

(Pages 93 98)

11.

Any other Business

12.

Date of next meeting - Friday 27th May 2022,
10.00 a.m. Venue - Remote via Microsoft
Teams

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel
Meeting held on Friday 4th February 2022
Remote Meeting
Present:
Cllr Leslie Byrom (CBE) (Victoria Ward) - Chair
Cllr Denise Dutton (Harrington Ward)
Cllr Tony Brough (Ainsdale Ward)
Cllr Greg Myers (Norwood Ward)
Cllr Jan Grace BA (Hons) MRes PGDip SRN (Victoria Ward)
Cllr John Fairclough Cabinet Member for Locality Services (Linaker Ward)
Jackie Sutton – Merseyside Fire Service
Georgia Ribbens – Young Advisor Lead for Sefton CVS
Nigel Bellamy – Sefton CVS
Andy Dunsmore Team Leader Strategic Transport Planning & Investment Team
Jayne Vincent - Consultation & Engagement Lead, Sefton MBC
Fiona Caplan – Southport Access for Everyone (SAFE)
Sharon Eaton – Strategic Admin Support, Sefton MBC
Apologies:
Cllr Paulette Lappin (Chair)
Wendy Anderson – Healthwatch Sefton
Lyn Cooke, Head of Communications and Engagement, CCG
The reports presented to the Public Consultation and Engagement Panel can be
found here: Sefton Council – Link to Consultation & Engagement Panel Papers – 4th
February 2022
Action

1. Welcome and Apologies
Apologies: Cllr Paulette Lappin, Lyn Cooke and Wendy Anderson
2. Declarations of Interest
No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal
interests were received.
3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 14th January 2022 are a
true and proper record.

1

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

4. Matters Arising
Jayne Vincent informed Panel that the annual report was shared
with Cabinet Members at the request of Cllr Lappin
Item 5 - Feedback and Evaluation report - Crosby Coastal
Park new cycleway and footway
• Outcome of the consultation - Andrew Dunsmore
The council were successful in securing some funding from the
LCR and Europe Union Sustainable Urban Development (SUD)
which is about sustainable transport and habitat improvements.
The scheme involves the construction of a new cycle/footway
route and some habitat improvements to Crosby Coastal Park.
The decision was made with Cabinet Members support that it
would be sensible to seek some sort of consultation with members
of the public and with anyone who may potentially use or be
affected by the proposed route so that the Council could shape
their plans before submitting the scheme for planning permission
The initial consultation took place between 21st May-4th July 2021.
Due to Covid-19 restrictions, it was an online consultation which
was also accessible on the ‘Transport’ related pages on Sefton
Council’s website. In addition, posters were on noticeboards
across the Coastal Park and in Potters Barn Park. Leaflets were
delivered to residential properties and businesses affected by the
proposed route. Information about the proposed plans were also
available on the Council’s social media pages and a focus group
was also set up.
Following the initial consultation, concerns were raised by Ward
Members, the Seafront Residents Action Group, Crosby Coastal
Forum and residents on Westward View and Endsleigh Road.
Subsequently a further consultation in the form of letter explaining
design changes and inviting further feedback took place between
October and November 2021 with the residents of Westward View
and Endsleigh Road.
In addition, due to the concerns raised by some Ward Members a
report was compiled for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Meeting (Regeneration and Skills) which took place on 9 th
November 2021. The proposals were discussed at the Informal
Cabinet Policy meeting on 13th January and Cabinet Members
subsequently recommended that the scheme is progressed to
planning based on the recommendations/design changes listed:

2

Page 6

Agenda Item 3
•
•

•
•
•

•
•

Section of the route at the rear of Endsleigh Road removed
due to privacy concerns.
Section of the route along Westward View amended to
accommodate safety issues due to the current parking by
residents.
Increase width of shared facilities due to safety concerns
Cycle only and segregated routes in areas of high demand
due to safety concerns
Delineation of the cycle only sections with a buff-coloured
surface to minimise conflict between cyclists and
pedestrians
Improved signing
The use of decorative lighting

A Planning Application has been submitted for full planning
approval on Monday 17th January 2022.
Future engagement:
•

•

•
•

As part of the planning process there will be a formal
consultation process, which will offer the chance for further
engagement.
A further tailored letter will be sent to residents on
Westward View and Endsleigh Road who responded to the
first letters sent.
All Focus Groups will be informed of the planning process
and directed to the result section on YSYS.
An overview of all findings will be posted on YSYS, in the
We Asked/ You Said/ We Are Doing format.

Cllr Fairclough commented that it was an interesting consultation
result and that the plans were amended during the consultation
process reflecting the concerns received from residents and other
interested parties.
Cllr Myers stated that it was a very good consultation over a
difficult subject where there was a lot of strong feelings. Cllr Myers
asked about the response given in connection to equal weighting.
The response was “the consultation was agreed with the panel
with no proposals agreed to give weighted scores” – is that saying
that the residents are asking for greater weighting – and the
Council’s response is that it wasn’t considered because it was
done in consultation with this Panel Cllr Myers also questioned
why the Panel didn’t give additional weighting to the residents as
they are more likely to be more impacted by any changes –
therefore there should be a slightly different weighting. Was this

3

Page 7

Agenda Item 3
considered or is that something that should considered in the
future.
Jayne Vincent cannot recall a discussion around weighting at the
Panel but will refer to the minutes of that meeting to see if that
was the case.

Jayne Vincent

Cllr Myers thanked Jayne but reiterated that the response given to
the residents was unhelpful.
Nigel Bellamy said he doesn’t believe the term weighting was ever
used. Some schemes affect everyone in the same way and
others affect pockets of people, so it is important to respond to
those affected. Nigel agreed with Cllr Myers that weighting should
be considered in the future.
Andy agreed with Cllr Myers point and that the response could
have been reported differently. They weren’t seeking a consensus
to move the scheme forward but did report that over 60% were in
favour of the proposals. However, it may have been better to
report how many of the 60% were local residents/business’s and
how many were from the wider area.
Cllr Myers said that this issue was raised because it is a matter for
the Panel to think about.
Cllr Grace commented that as a cyclist who uses the seafront
often, she was pleased by some of the feedback around things
that had changed e.g., the width of the cycle path and the different
coloured surface to prevent conflict between cyclists and
pedestrians because that is a problem around Burbo Bank and
appreciates that it is an emotive subject which was initially not
popular but now more people are coming to look forward to the
changes which she feels is in response to the consultation.
Jayne mentioned that she had sent the Panel a response from the
Seafront Residents Action Panel and asked about the next stages
and wonders about timescales for that and although it is usually 6
weeks, and in view of the feedback received, whether it is worth
considering extending the 6 weeks for the formal consultation and
will there be time before that process to let interested parties know
that it is due to start?
Secondly regarding the formal process and the proposal, will there
be an equality impact assessment also – the feedback from the
pre-consultation would help with the equality impact assessment
to look at those issues the interested parties have/may raise.
Andy responded that the timescale is something that his planning
colleagues will be leading on – the current expiry date is end of
March so between now and then they are hoping to have the

4

Page 8

Panel members

Agenda Item 3
consultation, interested parties have already been written to but
he will get the actual dates shared.
Jayne suggested that when they are ready to start the formal
consultation on the website, they should also publish the draft EIA
so that people can see what has been considered so far, then
when the formal consultation is completed, it will help with the full
EIA when it goes for decision.

Item 6 - Feedback and Evaluation report – Southport Cycling
& Walking
• Outcome of the consultation - Andrew Dunsmore
The government has a significant travel fund to promote scheme
to encourage walking and cycling, the ambition being that people
who travel short distances by car, consider walking or cycling, this
is all part of trying to reduce the carbon footprint as a response to
climate change and is something that is supported by LCRCA and
by Sefton as a council through our Climate Change Emergency
Plan. The government offered tranche 1 in summer 2020 which
came with significant restrictions in terms of when the money had
to be expended the principle being to take advantage of the fact
fewer cars on the roads because of lockdown. The LCRCA were
approached with several schemes, of which two were identified,
Southport and Bootle. The money was secured for Southport
tranche 1 which introduced a north-south cycle route which was
implemented. However, the scheme had to be completed within 8
weeks of securing the funding which didn’t allow enough time for
any consultation.
The government made tranche 2 money available, and the
combined authority thought that there was merit in extending the
Southport scheme – northwards and southwards so effectively
they chose a route based on the routes that were submitted for
tranche 1. This time the government stated that the LCRCA must
consult with the people and had to publish consultation proposals
by a certain date, which had to be done before bringing the
proposals to Panel. The conditions were that we had to
demonstrate broad support for our proposals and take on the
views of the local MP and then to feed that back to the LCRCA
and Department of Transport (DfT).
The Tranche 2 Consultation went live in the summer of 2021
which was an online consultation although there was engagement
with various organisations, schools, and key stakeholders in the
area.
The consultation process involved:

5

Page 9

Andrew
Dunsmore

Agenda Item 3
•
•
•
•

Focus Groups
Young Advisors Research
Your Sefton Your Say/Your Streets online questionnaire
On request stakeholder meeting

In addition, a range of engagement materials and comprehensive
communications package were developed.
The outcome of the consultation was shared with Overview and
Scrutiny on 9th November. A report was produced for Cabinet
Members to consider.
Analysis of the results shows that the average age of those who
completed the questionnaire were 50+ yrs. There were not many
responses from a younger age group which is something that
needs further work on. It was also noted that a number of people
who completed the questionnaire said no to every question.
The decision was taken that there is not broad support for either
cycle route in Southport however discussions have taken place
with DfT and the LCRCA to look at alternative proposals and are
awaiting formal approval. The alternative scheme is improving
cycle facilities on the Formby Bypass because the aspiration is to
create north south cycle routes and strengthen and improve those
routes already established.
The government have now set up an organisation Active Travel
England and their job is to review any proposals that LA’s come
up with to make sure that they meet the standards – so the
proposed alternative routes for Tranche 2 are now subject to
scrutiny from Active Travel England.
The consultation was aimed at trying to get a consensus from
people and the feedback that we had we couldn’t show broad
support, so we are now looking at ways of securing the funding
rather than sending it back to the combined authority.
Lessons learned are:
•

•

engaging with the wider community to try and get
feedback representative of everyone. If the same
process is used again - putting it on the website and
inviting people to respond -there is a danger that we
are missing out on a section of the public or are we
reflecting the views of people who are either in favour
of something or very much against and this is a
discussion that the DfT have been having.
Looking at other ways of consulting people - the
government are also looking at other ways of consulting
with people which may be rolled out nationally and are
suggesting that LA’s look at polling.
6

Page 10

Agenda Item 3

Cllr Fairclough stated that for many years the ambition has been
for the public, where possible, to look at walking and cycling for
health benefits rather than using the car for short journeys, 40% of
car journeys are less than 2 miles. In the past cycle lanes have
been introduced, unfortunately few of them join up with some
cycle lanes ending at the end of a street and begin again 100 or
so yards further on. The Tranche 1 situation where there was
insufficient time for consultation did cause some angst with people
which in turn has created a feeling with some people of anti-cycle
paths because they were not consulted. These feelings of angst
resurfaced when Tranche 2 was announced which this time
required broad support and Tranche 3 requirement is just to
consult the local community.
Cllr Fairclough feels that it is about educating and consulting with
as many people as possible because this is about the climate
emergency and about getting people to get out walking and
cycling for their health benefits and that is the message we need
to get across. There is a need to consult and get a more
demographic spread of the consultation responses so the Council
can fully understand what those responses are.
Cllr Grace agrees with Cllr Fairclough, it is a huge educational
process that is needed around climate emergency.
Cllr Dutton asked Andrew if there was any noticeable difference in
responses between Crosby and Southport in relation to age as he
had stated that there was an age disparity, and can he clarify that.
Cllr Dutton also asked about the timescales and cost implications
of polling and where would the funding come from.
Andrew agreed to look back at the results in relation to age groups
but thinks that they were a little bit younger than Southport
responders. But the general age group who respond to online
questionnaires tend to be older you don’t get many below 30.
There is a real challenge how to reach out to under 30’s.
In terms of polling and the costs associated with it, it is assumed
and understood that any consultation will be met by any money
the Council receives. The online survey is relatively easy to
deliver but sending leaflets out to people does have a cost
implication which we have to do because not everyone has
access to the internet. Regarding polling and the costs this hasn’t
been investigated yet, but it is something that will be considered
for schemes going forward as the government are asking us to
consider this process.

7

Page 11

Andrew
Dunsmore

Andrew
Dunsmore

Agenda Item 3
Cllr Dutton commented that she assumes that all the ward
councillors affected are being kept informed and up to date.
Andrew said that hopefully Active Travel England will review their
plans quickly and then if the DfT gives the go ahead for this
scheme letters will go out to all the ward members, MPs, and
Cabinet members of the three wards affected.
Cllr Myers agreed that there was a lack of input to the consultation
from the younger generation which is something that needs to be
looked at in terms of how to engage with this sector of the public.

Andrew
Dunsmore

Georgia Ribbens’s team were approached to deliver a
consultation to Greenbank and Birkdale High Schools in Southport
which involved asking the young people how they travelled to
school with the emphasis on whether they cycled or walked and
why they travelled in this way. They received approx. 20 – 30
responses via an online focus group and an online questionnaire
and the issues that were raised were around safety when cycling
on the roads and parents were unhappy with their children cycling
to and from school especially in the winter months when mornings
and evenings are dark. There were fewer young people walking
and cycling from Greenbank with issues raised around Cambridge
Road. A report was produced which won an award from the
National Young Advisers Charity for they work completed.
Jayne Vincent asked Andrew how he proposes to keep in touch
with the stakeholders now going forward?
Andrew replied that he will wait for the response from DfT that the
alternative approach has been accepted, then write initially to all
ward members, the MP and then target all the stakeholders that
are involved which may be a letter drop.
Andrew requested a meeting with Jayne outside of this meeting to
discuss further.
Cllr Brough agreed with Cllr Fairclough that it was unfortunate that
there was no consultation around Tranche 1 which then affected
the Tranche 2 consultation, and in future will endeavour to get the
consultation better aligned with people and hopefully get a better
response, his feeling is that the negativity wasn’t from car drivers
in general, it was from those people who were going to be directly
affected by the imposition of the cycle lanes as they were the
people asking why their area and how would they get into and out
of their homes, or have to make significant detours to get into and
out of their homes and it was this group that contacted him. He
feels that the second proposal is a step in the right direction and
hopefully there will be more consultation with elected members to
see if there is a way through to a more acceptable package that
still delivers some of the outcomes that are hoped to be achieved.

8

Page 12

Andrew Dunsmore
/Jayne Vincent

Agenda Item 3
Fiona Caplan wished to emphasise to the Panel that herself and
her group SAFE are not against cycle lanes and that there is a
place for cycle lanes to be used without unduly impacting on
members of the community. Regarding Georgia’s consultation
she felt that it is extremely disappointing that between the 2
schools, to only have 20 responses and if somebody like Georgia
and the group that she represents, specifically engaging with
schools only got 20 responses, then that is extremely
disappointing.
Fiona also mentioned that as far as disabled people are
concerned, they are going to be disproportionally affected by cycle
lanes in certain places and there are problems with the cycle
lanes in the town centre and disabled people don’t feel safe to go
into the town centre anymore because of the increased number of
cycles. It is acknowledged that something needs to be done due
to climate change and trying to encourage people not to use their
cars, but it is going to be difficult to do because people are
conditioned to get into their car and not just disabled people who
have to but other people also.
Cllr Fairclough thanked the Panel for the supportive comments.
He commented that one of the things with having discussions with
young people is to make sure that they understand what it is that
the Council are trying to do.
Cllr Dutton highlighted that apart from trying to engage with younger
people there is a need to engage with the businesses that may be
affected by the proposed route.
Jayne Vincent commented that there is a lot of data from Crosby
consultation that we already have which may help us with the draft
Equality Impact Assessment for any next stages e.g., the feedback
from SAFE from a people with disabilities perspective as one of the
protected characteristics – for consideration in the next stages.
Any Other Business

No other business was mentioned.

6. Date of next meeting Friday 11th March 2022, 10.00 a.m. Venue – Remote via Microsoft
Teams.

9

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Sefton Housing Strategy
2022 - 2027

Page 15

Reflections on the previous Housing Strategy ...............................................................................4
Foreword - Cabinet member for Communities and Housing Trish Hardy.................................5
Sefton 2030 vision.................................................................................................................................6
Priority Theme: Driving Housing Quality in Communities and Neighbourhoods.....................10
Priority Theme: Meeting People’s Housing Needs..........................................................................12
Priority Theme: Enabling People to Live Independently...............................................................14

Page 16

Priority Theme: Tackling Barriers to Obtaining Suitable Housing
for the most Vulnerable and Ensuring Equal Access to Housing Services................................16
Priority Theme: Effectively Utilising Council Assets to Support Housing..................................18

2

3

Agenda Item 5

Contents

Reflections on the previous
Housing Strategy

A new focus on Housing 		
2022-27
However, Sefton Council fully acknowledges that; Some housing
priorities can only be addressed over a longer timeframe. In 2019
the Council declared a Climate Emergency, and we recognise that
housing is one of the main producers of greenhouse gases so we have
made long-term resolutions to tackle our climate emergency head on
by working with private property owners and registered providers of
social housing to help retrofit housing stock across Sefton to reduce
carbon emissions. We have also taken positive action to meet the
challenge of providing sufficient social housing for local people by
developing and managing Council houses for the first time since
2006 over the period of this strategy. Each of these new or additional
housing priorities will be included within this document. These
matters have become more urgent over the past few years, as a direct
consequence of our national and local housing crises or as a positive
reaction to help tackle the climate emergency.

Sefton’s previous Housing Strategy 2016 -2021 included a diverse range of housing priorities that were
identified to help address the significant local and national housing challenges that Sefton’s residents
have faced over the previous 5-years.
Some of these housing priorities have been directly and successfully addressed, including; Driving
Housing Quality in Communities and Neighbourhoods through the introduction of successful Landlord
licensing schemes in the privately rented sector or working with Housing Associations to improve
and implement estate regeneration projects. Alongside this, we have removed 3,780 hazards from
residential properties that could have caused serious health & safety issues to occupiers or visitors and
brought 11 unfit properties back into use through the use of Enforced Sales procedures.

Page 17

There have been almost 3,300 additional new homes developed over the past 5 years across a range
of housing tenures, to meet people’s housing needs. Alongside this, we are enabling people to live
independently for longer through the implementation of an Extra Care prospectus to help secure
developments to meet the needs of older residents.

We have also tackled barriers to obtaining suitable housing for the most vulnerable and ensuring equal
access to housing services by; effectively implementing a range of measures brough about through
the Homelessness Reduction Act in 2017, to reduce homelessness and rough sleeping across the
Borough.
Finally, Sefton Council has effectively utilised its assets to support new housing developments by setting
up: Sandway Homes, to directly build and market new homes across the Borough. These outcomes
highlight just a few of the successful housing outcomes of the 2016-21 strategy.

Councillor Trish Hardy
Cabinet Member for
Communities and Housing

Additionally, legislative changes introduced by HM Government,
societal changes brough about through the Covid-19 pandemic, and
a reflection on the Grenfell Tower tragedy, mean that a robust and
renewed Housing Strategy is outlined in this document
I would like to thank all those that have been involved in shaping the
new Housing Strategy;

Cllr Trish Hardy
Cabinet Member Communities and Housing – Sefton Council 		
April 2022

4

5

Agenda Item 5

including tenants and residents, officers, partners and stakeholders.
We look forward to delivering on the objectives set out in this strategy
over the next 5 years.

The vision for housing in Sefton
to 2027 and beyond encompasses: –

2o 3o

Sefton’s Housing
Strategy (2022 - 2027)

“ Building upon the successful impacts of the previous
Housing Strategies to ensure that Sefton remains
a great place to live, by providing opportunities to
allow residents to access the highest quality housing
appropriate for their needs”.

Outlining our strategic
housing priorities.

IDENTIFY

MONITOR/REFLECT

Sefton’s Housing
Annual Monitoring Report

Page 18

Helping to reflect on progress
and targets achieved over the
previous 12 months, and allow
for updates to Sefton’s housing
priorities in the future.

Sefton’s Housing
Action Plan
IMPLEMENT

Key Themes and Housing Priorities
The key themes and housing priorities from Sefton’s outgoing Housing Strategy have been
reviewed and continue to remain relevant in this strategy refresh. This ensures a measure of
continuity in delivery and helps to build upon our past successful outcomes. Over the period of
this strategy our housing priorities will be:

•
•
•
•
•

Driving housing quality in communities and neighbourhoods;
Meeting people’s housing needs;
Enabling people to live independently;
Tackling barriers to obtaining suitable housing for the most vulnerable and ensuring equal access to
housing services;
Effectively utilising Council assets to support housing delivery.

6

7

The finer details & specific
activities and actions outlining
how these housing strategy
priorities will be achieved.

Agenda Item 5

DEVELOPING THE VISION
FOR HOUSING IN 				
SEFTON

This Housing Strategy does not sit in isolation; therefore, it references and supports numerous
national, Liverpool City Region and Sefton-wide higher-level strategies, goals and the Council’s
Core Purpose. This strategy comprises of three separate documents to; i) outline the strategic
housing priories; ii) provide details and methods of how these priorities will be achieved in an
Action Plan; and iii) monitor and evaluate progress against targets set out in the action plan, in
an Annual Monitoring Report.

It is also important that this strategy does not solely focus upon the provision of new housing, but
also concerns itself with how housing policies can improve the local environment and quality of
life for the benefit of all residents. Therefore, this strategy recognises that housing activities must
support the Council’s key high-level strategies including: Sefton’s Vision 2030, Local Plan, Health
and Wellbeing Strategy and Climate Emergency Strategy. All of which ensures that we:
Protect the most vulnerable
Meeting the housing needs of the most vulnerable groups, such as those with mental health issues,
learning and physical disabilities or those leaving care.
Facilitate confident and resilient communities
The places where we live will make it easy to be healthy and happy, with opportunities for better
health and wellbeing on our doorstep
Commission, broker and provide core services

Page 19

Ensuring that the right housing choices are available and housing services are commissioned or
provided in the most appropriate way.
Place - leadership and influencer
Ensuring homes and neighbourhoods are developed in a way that people enjoy being part of, and
take pride living in.
Drivers of change and reform

Agenda Item 5

Incorporating new technologies and materials to build better homes or retrofit existing homes with
new technologies and improve energy efficiency utilising the most sustainable methods.
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity
Supporting housing delivery throughout Sefton leads to a range of direct economic benefits
including: Local employment opportunities and workforce development in construction. The
development of aspirational homes also attracts and retains economically active people within the
Borough and will help to rebalance our demographic profile.
Greater income for social investment
Utilising a range of public and private housing investment funding streams to enable development of
the highest quality homes in the borough in the most appropriate locations.
Cleaner Greener
Leading a range of improvement initiatives and encouraging others across all types and tenures of
homes to; raise housing standards, address energy efficiency, reduce fuel poverty and decrease the
number of poor-quality houses.

8

9

Agenda Item 5

PRIORITY THEME:

DRIVING HOUSING QUALITY
IN COMMUNITIES AND
NEIGHBOURHOODS
Continuing to improve Sefton’s current housing stock is a key priority of this strategic theme. Higher
quality & more energy efficient homes bring direct benefits to individual households, neighbourhoods,
and the wider community. Climate change also represents a significant threat to our future, and this
priority will help improve the quality of housing and is a key part of addressing this emergency. The
Council will lead on a range of improvement initiatives and encourage others across all types and
tenures of homes to; raise housing standards, address energy efficiency, reduce fuel poverty and
decrease the number of poor-quality houses. This strategic priority also helps to tackle the number of
empty homes in the Borough, reducing negative impacts on neighbourhoods and help increase the
number of available homes.

Our priorities include:

Page 20

•
•
•
•
•

Raise housing standards across all tenures and reduce the number of non-decent homes with
particular focus on the worst conditions including;
Improving the quality of privately rented sector (PRS) homes and;
Regulating and improving Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)
Working closely with Social Housing providers ensure that residents in social housing are safe, are
listened to, live in good quality homes and have access to redress when things go wrong
Focus intervention activity to help reduce the number of long-term privately owned empty
properties across the borough.

We will achieve this priority over the next five years by:

•
•
•
•
•

Working closely with private sector landlords to encourage them to invest in Sefton & provide high
quality homes and management services;

•

Re-designation of current Selective and Additional (HMO) Licensing Schemes in Bootle, Waterloo
and Southport for a further five years (2023 - 2028);

•

Raise housing standards across all tenures and reduce the number of poor-quality homes with a
particular focus on those with the worst conditions;

•

Provide support and guidance to owner-occupiers to help them improve their housing standards,
particularly the most vulnerable in the worst housing conditions;

Working in partnership with Sefton’s Housing Associations to ensure that they successfully
implement the Charter for Social Housing Residents by providing the best quantity, type and quality
of housing, together with the most appropriate support services;
Decarbonisation of privately-owned and social housing to address Sefton’s Climate Emergency
Strategy by targeting and retrofitting the most energy inefficient homes;
Helping empty property owners to bring their properties back into use through advice and
assistance, including early intervention and preventative measures. Additionally, where necessary
utilising the full range of enforcement powers to target and bring problematic properties back into
use.

Using evidence to monitor the quality of existing housing stock within the Borough across all
tenures to assess where stock improvements can be implemented;

10

11

PRIORITY THEME: 					

MEETING PEOPLE’S HOUSING NEEDS
This priority looks at how we can increase the supply, mix and quality of new market homes, low cost
homes as well as affordable social housing. This increase in overall housing supply will encourage a
greater choice of homes that meet the needs of existing and future residents. Additional housing is
an important factor in allowing demand to be met across all tenures and improve market flexibility,
and importantly help to develop more mixed and sustainable communities. The Council also aspires to
directly oversee the development of high-quality new homes in areas where people want to live.

Our priorities include:

•
•
Page 21

•
•

Securing the development of appropriate housing and attracting housing investment in the
Borough;
Attracting and encouraging effective working relationships with appropriate housing development
partners to continue to provide new homes across a range of tenures;
Working with partners who can help those working-age residents own their own homes and to
remain in the borough by providing aspirational housing in areas where they wish to live.
Directly owning and managing social homes and also continuing to work with a range of partners
to develop affordable housing;

We will achieve this priority over the next five years by:

•

•
•
•
•

Agenda Item 5

•

Attracting a variety of high quality developers into Sefton to deliver exceptional homes and
neighbourhoods;
Identifying and utlising different grant funding or finance opportunities to help secure
development;
Working in partnership with developers who can provide housing products and services that help
aspiring householders to access home ownership;
Exploring supplementary housing tenures and affordable home ownership to ensure that workingage people can aspire to own their homes in locations they desire.
Working directly and also in partnership with housing associations to identify appropriate locations
and develop a greater quantum and range of social housing;
Utilising appropriate Planning policies to ensure homes are delivered throughout the Borough and
Affordable Homes are built for those residents who are in greatest need.

12

13

Agenda Item 5

PRIORITY THEME: 				
ENABLING PEOPLE TO LIVE
INDEPENDENTLY

This priority will help Sefton to provide an effective response to the longer-term demographic changes
that will affect the borough including significant increases in older populations and a decrease
in the working age population. This housing priority addresses how appropriate housing can be
provided to support the future needs of specific groups within the local population, through the
provision of specialist housing or adaptations to existing homes such as; more integrated and wider
implementation of assistive technologies and Technology Enabled Care Solutions (TECS). Ensuring that
people can continue to live independent, self-sufficient, and healthy lives.

Our priorities include:

•
•
Page 22

•
•
•
•

Responding to long-term demographic changes - A significant increase in older populations often
with more complex needs;
Implementing a robust Housing Pathway, to enable all residents to access supported living and
housing provision in the most suitable way;
Providing appropriate housing to support future population needs;
Reducing health inequalities through improved housing;
Meeting the housing needs of the most vulnerable groups, such as those with mental health issues,
learning and physical disabilities or those leaving care;
Using innovative and adaptive technologies as a tool to help support people to manage their own
health and enabling better coordination and personalisation of care.

We will achieve this priority over the next five years by:

•
•
•
•

Delivery of Extra Care Accommodation throughout the Borough alongside the adoption of a robust
Extra Care Housing Allocations Policy
Improved integrated working with health and social care partners to identify the appropriate
housing and housing investment required
Introducing a housing pathway to set out new processes for streamlining access to supported
living, in addition to housing provision for all cohorts of vulnerable people including older persons
and those with disabilities, for example those with learning disability and/or Autism, physical
impairment and mental health.

•
•

Working with partners to provide new housing and improved accommodation for older populations,
care leavers and the most vulnerable groups, in the most appropriate and accessible locations for
local services and facilities;
Working with landlords and support service agencies to provide a range of supported living
accommodation for our most vulnerable.

Implementing the priorities as set out in the Technology Enabled Care Solutions (Tecs) Strategy
2021-2024. Ensuring that the provision of TECS for individuals to live in an accessible and safe
“home” environment, enabling them to retain independence;

14

15

PRIORITY THEME: 					

TACKLING BARRIERS TO OBTAINING
SUITABLE HOUSING FOR THE MOST
VULNERABLE AND ENSURING EQUAL
ACCESS TO HOUSING SERVICES

Page 23

This priority will meet the needs of more diverse communities within Sefton, supporting the needs
of populations or groups who are not able to be appropriately represented through the conventional
housing market. This priority requires all areas of the Council to work in partnership with a range
ofexternal agencies and charities, to ensure that: The very best housing outcomes are achieved for
Sefton’s most vulnerable groups, such as those with mental health issues, learning and physical
disabilities or those leaving care. This priority also recognises how housing can be used to help provide
a level of protection for victims of domestic abuse and help to prevent offending behaviours.

Our priorities include:

•
•
•
•

•

Providing more effective housing related support and advice services;
Meeting the needs of more diverse and vulnerable communities;
Providing greater access to affordable housing through improvements to the Choice-based letting
scheme (Property Pool Plus);

Agenda Item 5

•

Tackling all forms of homelessness and rough sleeping

Providing additional housing opportunities; by registering as a social landlord to develop, own
and manage housing stock (links to Priority Theme: Effectively Utilising Council Assets to Support
Housing)
Understand and act upon the duties placed on the Council, with regards to the Domestic Abuse Act
2021.

We will achieve this priority over the next five years by:

•
•
•
•
•

Refreshing Sefton’s Homeless and Rough Sleeper Strategy and implementation of the new
Homeless Strategy action plan;
Assessing the current and future housing requirements for vulnerable groups including: Care
Leavers, those providing Foster Care and people with a disability;
Implementing the refreshed allocations policy for the Choice Based Letting Scheme (Property Pool
Plus). Including where improvements to customer access can be made to assist those in need;
Development of a business plan, to assess how Council Housing can address the needs of the most
vulnerable;
Providing accommodation-based support to victims of domestic abuse and their children in refuges
and other safe accommodation.
16

17

Agenda Item 5

PRIORITY THEME: 				

EFFECTIVELY UTILISING COUNCIL
ASSETS TO SUPPORT HOUSING
This theme continues the work of the previous housing strategy by addressing how Sefton can
maximise the use of its existing asset base, including its land and property portfolio to support the
delivery of additional homes. The priority looks to enhance and grow properties being provided by
Sandway Homes (Sefton Council’s housing development company), over the lifetime of this strategy.
Additionally, the Local Authority is once again registered as a Provider of Social Housing enabling the
Council to act as a housing provider, stock owner and social landlord. Finally, the Council must work
closely with national and sub-regional agencies to maximise the value of available funding for housing
investment. This funding and investment will directly lead to the creation of new homes whilst
bringing redundant or previously developed land back into use.

Our priorities include:

•
Page 24

•
•
•

Reviewing and prioritising land and assets the Council owns/manages to help deliver housing and
regeneration priorities;
Providing additional housing opportunities; by registering as a social landlord to develop, own and
manage housing stock (links to Priority Theme: Tackling Barriers to Obtaining Suitable Housing for
the Most Vulnerable and Ensuring Equal Access to Housing Services);
Growth of Sandway Homes to deliver new homes & making best use of council owned assets;
Maximising housing investment funding from external partners, to enable additional housing
development in the Borough.

We will achieve this priority over the next five years by:

•
•
•
•
•
•

Reviewing/facilitating the disposal of Council-owned regeneration assets to deliver housing or other
regeneration priorities. Supporting the Council’s Growth and Investment programme;
Developing a Council Housing Business Plan to outline detailed governance arrangements and to
meet regulatory requirements;
Progressing the acquisition of Council Housing to meet housing needs;
Development of Sandway Homes future pipeline sites throughout Sefton to provide additional
quality family homes;
Working directly with Liverpool City Region Combined Authority partners, to attract appropriate
funding sources, to help implement a range of housing developments;
Working with Homes England and Housing Associations, to maximise housing investment in the
Borough, through the Affordable Homes Programme 2021-2026 funding.

18

19

Agenda Item 5

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Appendix X - Sefton Housing Strategy 2022-2027 (Interim) Equality Impact Assessment

1.0 Introduction
1.1 The Equality Act 2010 outlines how public bodies must have due regard to:
1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation, and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under this act
2. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it
3. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.
2.0 Protected Characteristics
2.1 Equality Act 2010 is clear that there are particular characteristics that are intrinsic to an
individual against which it would be easy to discriminate. Section 149 (the Public Sector Equality
Duty) lists the characteristics known as ‘protected characteristics’ against which we have to test for
discrimination. These characteristics are gender, race/ethnicity, religion and belief, sexual
orientation, age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity and disability.

3.0

Identifying Impacts across protected characteristics

Through reviewing your proposal, identify if and how the protected groups below may be impacted
and identify any mitigating actions regarding the proposed changes but also as part of the
consultation and engagement activity.
Protected
characteristic
Gender

Recommendations/mitigating actions
There are potential equality impacts relating to Females due to gender
differences between the composition of households and household tenures.
The majority of single parent households are female. These households
therefore rely on a single income, and current evidence identifies that; the
renumeration levels for females is lower than males. Females are more likely
to face challenges in accessing and affording housing, particularly private
rented homes if in need of housing benefit assistance, and more likely to live
in social rented housing.
Mitigating Actions: This strategy aims to mitigate these factors by improving
the access to housing and housing services and providing a greater range of
homes across a wider range of tenures.
Additionally, Sefton’s Housing Strategy is a high-level strategic document.
The individual policies and plans arising from the strategy Action Plan, that
have a direct impact on this protected group, will be potentially subject to
separate consultation and EIA assessments. To identify and mitigate any
identified direct or indirect gender discrimination.

Age

This Housing Strategy aims to positively impact those age groups (both young
and old) that may be disproportionately affected by access to housing and
housing services. This strategy has been closely developed with a range of
representatives from the Children’s and Adult Social Care departments. There
are housing priorities that can have positive impacts on children and younger
adults who would wish toPage
access27
the housing market across a range of tenures.
Additionally, there are specific aims and actions within this strategy [Enabling

Agenda Item 5
Appendix X - Sefton Housing Strategy 2022-2027 (Interim) Equality Impact Assessment

People to Live Independently] that look to address the needs of older
populations and the continuing demographic changes affecting the borough.
Again, as Sefton’s Housing Strategy is a high-level strategic document. The
individual policies and plans arising from the strategy Action Plan, that have a
direct impact on this protected group, will be potentially subject to separate
consultation and EIA assessments. To identify and mitigate any identified direct
or indirect age-related discrimination.
Disability

The Housing Strategy again aims to positively impact upon these groups,
including those with physical or mental disabilities. A number of the housing
priorities including: Meeting people’s housing needs, Enabling people to
live independently &Tackling barriers to obtaining suitable housing for the
most vulnerable and ensuring equal access to housing services. These
all prioritise improving the provision of housing and housing services that are
accessible and adaptable will increase choice in all tenures to help mitigate
existing identified shortfalls or barriers.
Again, as Sefton’s Housing Strategy is a high-level strategic document. The
individual policies and plans arising from the strategy Action Plan, that have a
direct impact on this protected group, will be potentially subject to separate
consultation and EIA assessments. To identify and mitigate any identified direct
or indirect disability-related discrimination.

Race/Ethnicity

The Housing Strategy seeks to positively address issues relating to race or
ethnicity through “Meeting the needs of more diverse and vulnerable
communities” and “Providing more eﬀective housing related support and
advice services”. Ethnic groups such as Gypsies and Travellers have specific
accommodation and housing need, and this strategy ensures that all ethnic
groups will be assessed to ensure their housing needs are identified and met
Sefton’s Housing Strategy is a high-level strategic document. The individual
policies and plans arising from the strategy Action Plan, that have a direct
impact on this protected group, will be potentially subject to separate
consultation and EIA assessments. To identify and mitigate any identified direct
or indirect race/ethnicity-related discrimination.

Religion or
belief

Sexual
Orientation

Gender
Reassignment

None identified. The Housing Strategy is secular in its approach and
implementation. However, as Sefton’s Housing Strategy is a high-level
strategic document. There may be individual policies and plans arising from the
strategy Action Plan, that have a direct impact on this protected group. These
will be assessed and identified on a policy-by-policy basis will be potentially
subject to separate consultation and EIA assessments. To identify and mitigate
any identified direct or indirect religion or belief-related discrimination.
None identified. However, as Sefton’s Housing Strategy is a high-level strategic
document. There may be individual policies and plans arising from the strategy
Action Plan, that have a direct impact on this protected group. These will be
assessed and identified on a policy-by-policy basis will be potentially subject to
separate consultation and EIA assessments. To identify and mitigate any
identified direct or indirect sexual orientation-related discrimination.
None identified. However, as Sefton’s Housing Strategy is a high-level strategic
document. There may be individual policies and plans arising from the strategy
Page
28 protected group. These will be
Action Plan, that have a direct impact
on this
assessed and identified on a policy-by-policy basis will be potentially subject to

Agenda Item 5
Appendix X - Sefton Housing Strategy 2022-2027 (Interim) Equality Impact Assessment

Pregnancy and
maternity

Other Protected
Groups

separate consultation and EIA assessments. To identify and mitigate any
identified direct or indirect sexual orientation-related discrimination.
None identified. However, as Sefton’s Housing Strategy is a high-level strategic
document. There may be individual policies and plans arising from the strategy
Action Plan, that have a direct impact on this protected group. These will be
assessed and identified on a policy-by-policy basis will be potentially subject to
separate consultation and EIA assessments. To identify and mitigate any
identified direct or indirect sexual orientation-related discrimination.
The objectives of this housing strategy are to provide homes and housing
services to meet the needs of people who are unable to access the
conventional housing market. The strategy seeks to promote housing
opportunities for all those groups with protected characteristics. Each policy
arising from the Housing Strategy will be assessed in accordance with the
Equality Act 2010, to ensure that direct or indirect discrimination does not take
place.

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Agenda Item 6
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel
Date:

Friday 11th March 2022

Title:

Feedback and Evaluation report – Revision of the Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Licensing Policy

Report of:

Kevin Coady, Senior Licensing Officer

1.

2.

Purpose of the Report
1.1

To provide feedback on the consultation that took place with regard to the
revision of the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Licensing Policy.

1.2

The Panel have agreed to appraise the Feedback and Evaluation Reports
in accordance with the standards of public engagement and consultation
and will consider:•

How the activity was carried out;

•

the opinions of the people taking part on how they found the process;

•

The number of people who took part and the costs of the different
methods of getting them involved;

•

How successful different methods were at getting the views of people
who are not normally heard, for example, children, young people and
people with disabilities;

•

How the results will be fed back to the public; and

•

How will the results influence policies and service plans.

Name of Issue you were Consulting On
2.1

Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (GA05) requires that all licensing
authorities prepare and publish a statement of the principles that they
propose to apply in exercising their functions under the GA05 during the
three year period to which the Statement of Licensing Policy (the Policy)
applies. A licensing policy statement will last for a maximum of three
years, but can be reviewed and revised by an authority at any time.

2.2

The Policy had been kept under review since coming into force on 31
January 2019 and no alterations had been deemed necessary during
that period. The Policy required revision during 2021 in order for it to take
effect from 31 January 2022 (when the new three year cycle
commences).

1

Page 31

Agenda Item 6
Agenda Item 6
3.

The Consultation Process
3.1

Section 349 (3) of the GA05 requires that the Licensing Authority consult
the following on the Policy (or any subsequent revision):
• The chief officer of police for the Authority's area;
• One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the
interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the
Authority's area; and,
• One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of
the Authority's functions under this Act.

3.2

The views of the above have to be given appropriate weight when the
Policy is being determined.

3.3

It is a statutory requirement to consult those persons outlined above prior
to producing any revised Policy. Beyond these statutory requirements, it
is for each licensing authority to decide the full extent of its consultations
and whether any particular person or body is representative of the group
described in the statute.

3.4

As with previous consultation exercises undertaken (with both the
Licensing Act 2003 Statement of Licensing Policy and the previous
revisions of the GA05 Statement of Licensing Policy) general awareness
of the consultation process, and access to the draft revised Policy, was
increased by:
i)

Publishing the draft revision, a consultation response proforma and
general information on the Sefton Council Website
(www.sefton.gov.uk) and via Sefton Council's Online Consultation
Hub (https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/);
ii) News items placed on the various Sefton Council social media
pages;
iii) Placing copies of the draft revision, and a list of any alterations
made, in local libraries; and,
iv) Through press releases to all local press agencies.
3.5

In addition to the general consultation/awareness raising referred to
above the following specific consultations took place:
i) Letter to Merseyside Police.
ii) Letters to: the Gambling Commission; local fire and rescue authority;
Sefton Council Planning; Sefton Council Environmental Health &
Licensing Section; Sefton Council Safeguarding Children’s Unit; and
HM Revenue and Customs.
iii) Letters to the following Organisations: National Casino Forum;
British Amusement Catering Trade Association (BACTA); The Bingo
Association; National Association of Bookmakers; Association of
British Bookmakers Ltd (ABB); Hospice Lotteries Association; The
2

Page 32

Agenda Item 6
Agenda Item 6
Lotteries Council; The British Association of Leisure Parks; Piers and
Attractions Limited (BALPPA); The Racecourse Association Limited;
The British Beer and Pub Association; and Gamcare.
iv) Letter to Sefton Chamber of Commerce and the Southport BID
Team.
v) Letter to all Borough Councillors, Sefton Members of Parliament and
Parish Council Clerks.
4.

Summary of the Consultation Results
4.1

5.

6.

Feedback
5.1

Those individuals who replied directly to the Licensing Unit were sent an
acknowledgment letter containing details of how the Policy revision
would proceed and where they could view the results.

5.2

Those who replied via Sefton Council's Online Consultation Hub were
given the above details as part of the information contained on the Hub.

Future engagement
6.1

7.

A full list of responses to the consultation exercise, together with the
officer appraisal of those responses, is provided at Annex to this report.

A further consultation exercise will be necessary in 3 years time when the
Policy next comes up for revision.

Recommendations
7.1

The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel are recommended to
a)

Note the contents of the report and feedback and evaluation forms

b)

Request that lead officers provide the Public Engagement and
Consultation Team with the results and reports so that they can be
uploaded onto the Consultation Hub.

c)

Request that lead officer’s report to a future Panel meeting to update
the panel as to any additional changes that have occurred as a result
of the consultation feedback.

3

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX
Respondent

Comments

Appraisal

Response

001

HM Revenue and
Customs

Only comment was to give us an up to
date address for service of applications to
them in the future.

Responsible Authority addresses
are contained within Annex 2 which
does not form part of the Policy

Policy unchanged, Annex 2
updated.

002

Independent Safeguarding
and Quality Assurance
Unit

Have read the Policy and have no
changes requested.

N/A

N/A

003

National Association of
Bookmakers

Thanking us for including them in the
Consultation, happy with the draft Policy
as is.

N/A

N/A

004

Aintree Village Parish
Council

Members have read the draft Policy and
have no additional comments to make.

N/A

N/A

005

Anon local resident (1)

No feedback given

N/A

N/A

006

Anon local resident (2)

“Thank you for sharing the Gambling
Policy and for providing this in Easy
Read. I understand the changes and
thank you for the opportunity to
feedback.”

N/A

N/A

007

Anon local resident (3)

“I cannot see any reason to increase the
number of licenced betting facilities
across Sefton. The LA needs to take as
hard a stance, while remaining within the
law, as far as betting is concerned. The
ease and availability of online betting has
created a monster and we need to do
what we can to reduce the number of
betting premises. There are far too many
already.”

On-line Betting dealt with by the
Gambling Commission.

No changes can be made.

“There should be no more gambling
establishments licensed in Sefton.

Unable to restrict numbers via the
Gambing Act legilslation.

008

Anon local resident (4)

Gambling destroys lives and families and

Unable to restrict numbers via the
Gambing Act legilslation.

No changes can be made.

Agenda Item 6

Page 35

Ref

Respondent

Comments
negatively impacts our society.
Absolutely no more licenses issued and
preferably no renewals of any licenses for
any gambling establishments.
In particular FOBTs must not be allowed
in ANY gambling establishments as these
are the worst driver of addictive "play to
extinction" behaviours.”

Appraisal

Response

Agenda Item 6

Ref

Page 36

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel
Date:

Friday 11th March 2022

Title:

Feedback and Evaluation report – Allotment Consultation

Report of:

Martin Sarbutts, Facilities Development and Management Officer
x2932

1.

2.

Purpose of the Report
1.1

To provide feedback on the consultation that occurred for Allotments in
summer 2021

1.2

The Panel have agreed to appraise the Feedback and Evaluation Reports
in accordance with the standards of public engagement and consultation
and will consider:•

How the activity was carried out;

•

the opinions of the people taking part on how they found the process;

•

The number of people who took part and the costs of the different
methods of getting them involved;

•

How successful different methods were at getting the views of people
who are not normally heard, for example, children, young people and
people with disabilities;

•

How the results will be fed back to the public; and

•

How will the results influence policies and service plans.

The Consultation Process
2.1

Consultation was carried out via a questionnaire (Appendix 1) to plot
holders (tenants), those on the waiting lists as well as local residents.
The consultation window was open for 8 weeks during June to August
2021 during which 815 questionnaires were completed.

3.

Summary of the Consultation Results
3.1

From the questionnaire it is fair to say that the response was large with
only 6% not on either the waiting list or currently on a plot, giving a
strong representation of views.

1

Page 37

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7
3.2

64% of respondents felt that the fees charged for an allotment were
reasonable which given that Sefton are some of the highest in the
Northwest implying that tenants are unconcerned with the current rental
level

3.3

If rental was to be increased, the survey indicated they would like
improved water and investment on site rather than more Green Sefton
Staff time

3.4

There was strong support for having concession reductions on site but
don’t wish for their fees to increase to cover this.

3.5

The survey then asks questions about the physical infrastructure on our
allotment sites. In summary the survey showed:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

There was a general dissatisfaction with the condition of pathways /
communal areas.
Tenants were broadly happy with the water supply provided to sites
(NOTE: one site does not have a supply).
Where provided, respondents were happy with the toilets on site,
however most sites have no toilet provision.
Communal buildings were seen positively by the respondents.
There was strong satisfaction with the growing conditions overall but
analysis shows dissatisfaction comes from waterlogged sites.
We found that many respondents were unhappy with vacant plots /
those in an unkempt state.
There were mixed responses to waste disposal provision, but
generally more were dissatisfied than satisfied. This requires further
analysis as we have not regularly provided skips.
Vandalism was not a major concern and we had a majority ‘neutral’
response on this matter.
Tenants were often dissatisfied with boundaries.
In terms of site security, respondents were strongly satisfied overall.
Respondents were more satisfied than dissatisfied with the
availability of site information. The results reflect whether the site in
question had a noticeboard and association meetings or not.
Fly tipping was not identified as a serious concern.
Respondents were largely satisfied with vehicle access.
Respondents indicated strong satisfaction with feeling safe /
personal safety.

3.6

Most tenants travel by car and spend up to 20hrs a week at their plot in
the summer and up to 10hrs in the winter. Tenants clearly make use of
skips but limit use of communal areas. Tenants are generally ‘green’ in
their approach and use environmentally friendly materials on site and
utilise their own compost.

3.7

Despite a ban on glass on allotments, there is still a large issue with two
thirds of tenants reporting glass on site. Significant time and resource will
2

Page 38

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7
be required to remove this from site to see them eventually become glass
free.

4.

5.

3.8

Tenants were asked about their willingness to get involved in the wider
activities on site but there was little support for an Allotment Forum but
there is support for assisting the Council in maintaining communal areas
on site.

3.9

Overall, there was a minority support for how Sefton manages and
inspects plots and at the same time there was strong support for seeking
accreditation for sites as some form of Quality Award.

3.10

Tenants also ranked what their priorities for improvement would be and
the top three were: toilets; drainage; better access.

3.11

It is acknowledged that waiting lists are long, however the majority on
those lists would rather wait longer than share a plot with any other tenant
on site.

Feedback
4.1

The collated results have been summarised and will be published (see
appendix 2) and sent to all those with an allotment and on the waiting list.
Copies will be sent to allotment associations and the report will be shared
on-line and through social media platforms to get the information out to
the wider public.

4.2

The results from this consultation are being used to drive a new Allotment
Strategy for the borough which will shape the way allotments are managed
in future years.

Future engagement
5.1

6.

Any future engagement will be through the same channels as used in this
consultation process. Social media, association contacts and through the
newsletter on site will ensure a good coverage for any future
engagements.

Recommendations
6.1

The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel are recommended to
a)

Note the contents of the report and feedback and evaluation forms

b)

Request that lead officers provide the Public Engagement and
Consultation Team with the results and reports so that they can be
uploaded onto e-Consult.

3

Page 39

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7
c)

Request that lead officer’s report to a future Panel meeting to update
the panel as to any additional changes that have occurred as a result
of the consultation feedback.

4

Page 40

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Allotment Survey Results
Introduction
Green Sefton has undertaken its largest survey relating to allotments ever to find out the views of
those using allotments, those on a waiting list or the general public. The results of this survey will
assist in shaping the development of a long-term strategy for allotments in the borough.
Some 817 responded to the survey which closed at the end of Summer 2021. This summary report
gives an indication of the responses. Some parts of the questionnaire were specifically for those
already on an allotment site, a section was for those on the waiting list, and a small section for
general public.
This is a summary of those results in general. It may be possible given more time to provide a
response from plot holders on specific sites to create an action plan for each site (where possible)

Questions for All
Question One
This looked at the type of respondent and which category they fell into (Allotment holder, on the
waiting list or neither). Of the 814 who responded, the majority were involved with allotments in
some way as either a tenant or on the waiting list (93.5%)
Option
Plot Holder
On the waiting list
Neither
Not Answered

Total
300
462
52
1

Percent
36.81%
56.69%
6.38%
0.12%

This shows that the survey was answered by the target audience in the main.

Question Two
Looked at whether all respondents felt that the rental costs for an allotment was reasonable. Nearly
two thirds of answers felt that the costs are reasonable with the remaining third feeling they are not.

Are Rental Fees Reasonable?
Not answered, 2
No, 290
Yes, 532

Yes
No
Not answered

1

Page 41

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Question Three
The next question looked at if people would be willing to pay more for an improved offering in
several areas. The graph below shows the answer to this

Would you pay more for the following?
80
70
60

% Response

50
40
30
20
10
0
Regular Skips Staff Support

Communal
Storage

Water Supply

Dedicated
Parking

More
Investment

Animals

Axis Title
Yes

No

No answer

This shows that most people would be willing to pay more allotment fees if it meant getting an
improved water supply and more investment on site. People also stated they wouldn’t pay more for
staff support, communal storage or parking on site. There was marginal support for paying more to
get regular skips and being able to keep chickens or bees on site.

Questions Four-Six
When ask ‘Do you think there should be concessions on rental? e.g. lower rates for pensioners,
unemployed etc’ there were 813 responses to this part of the question. An overwhelming majority
(75%) felt that there should be a concession scheme in place

Yes

No

Not Answered
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

A similar question was asked regarding free provision for registerd charities ‘Do you think there
should be free plots for charities and other individuals? e.g. registered disabled’ with 68% of

2

Page 42

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
responses responding in a positive manner for this policy to be implemented.
Yes
Not Answered
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

However when viewed with the answers from the next question ‘Would you be happy to pay more
rental to help provide free plots and concessions for others?’ the response was very different. This
time respondents would not pay any more themselves to provide concessions
Option
Yes
No
Not Answered

Total
308
505
2

Percent
37.79%
61.96%
0.25%

From this we can assume that people would be willing to provide concessions and free plots in
certain circumstances but that the cost of this should not be borne by the other allotment holders.

Plot Holder Only Questions
These questions were answered by 299 of the participants in this survey.

Which Site are you on?
This question gives us more insight into what the tenants think on each site. The breakdown of
responses is as follows

RESPONSES

Hatton Hill Blundell Lane
2%
9%
Gardener Avenue
6%

Moss Lane
6%

Queensway
10%

Birkdale Irrigation
27%

Dunningsbridge
Road
2% Browns Lane
4%
Beach Road
3%
Sherwood Avenue
6%
Scape Lane Hoggs Hill
6%
6%

Town Lane
Altcar Road 6%
7%

Just over 25% of responses were received from Birkdale Irrigation which is a large site compared to
smaller sites like Blundell Lane.
The next question was about how long they have been a tenant on this plot. This looked at the
longevity of plot holders once they are on site
3

Page 43

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
TENANCY LENGTH
under 2 years

10 year or more

5-10 Years
2-5 Years

It will be interesting to see if this alters if the survey (or aspects of it) are repeated every year.
The next set of questions for plot holders looked at the condition of their site and their satisfaction
levels.

Chart Title
Very satisfied

Satisfied

Neutral

Dissatisfied

Very dissatisfied

Not On site

350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0

In summary this shows that:
•
•
•

There was a general dissatisfaction with the condition of pathways / communal areas.
Tenants were broadly happy with the water supply provided to sites (NOTE: one site does
not have a supply).
Where provided they were happy with the toilets on site, however most sites have no toilet.
4

Page 44

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Communal buildings where seen positively by the respondents.
There was strong satisfaction with the growing conditions, but analysis shows dissatisfaction
comes from waterlogged sites.
We found that many people were unhappy with vacant plots / those in an unkempt state.
Waste disposal provided, mixed responses, but generally more were dissatisfied. This
requires further analysis as we have not regularly provided skips.
Vandalism was not a major concern and we had a strong neural response on this matter.
Tenants were often dissatisfied with boundaries.
In terms of site security, respondents were strongly satisfied overall.
The availability of site information found people were more satisfied than dissatisfied. The
results reflect whether the site had a noticeboard and association meetings or not.
Fly tipping was not identified as a serious concern.
Respondents were largely satisfied with vehicle access.
People felt safe / personal safety, strongly satisfied they feel safe.

A more detailed analysis of the results at a later date will provide more details to allow action plans
for improvements on each site to be drawn up as part of the Allotment Strategy.

How do you travel to your plot?

Transport Type
Cycle
18%

Other
0%

Motorbike
0%

Car
53%
Walk
28%

Public Transport
1%
Car

Public Transport

Walk

Cycle

Motorbike

Other

Clearly most people use their car to get to site but a slight majority had issues with car parking based
on previous answers. This is not surprising given that only half plots are let and the amount of
carparking has remained the same. Only 1% use public transport but nearly 30% walk suggesting
their plot is local.

How long do you spend on you plot?
This question was split into summer and winter with more people spending longer on their plots in
the summer as expected the chart illustrates this with significantly more hours on an allotment in
the summer.

5

Page 45

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Hours Spent on Plot
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0
under 2 hours

2-5 hours

6-10 hours
Winter

11-20 hours

20+ Hours

Summer

What do you grow?
As we suspected, nearly all who answered grow vegetables with the majority growing fruit. Some
grew flowers, approximately half grew herbs and spices and a minority grew fungi.

Produce
Fungi

Herbs/spices

Flowers

Fruit

Vegetables
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Produce

Do you use skips provided?
Occasionally the limited allotment budget allows us to provide skips for tenants to use. This is often
supplemented by Ward funds and Allotment Association provision. The skips are well received and
very well used with 80% of plot holders using them to clear rubbish from their plot.

Do you use communal storage areas?
This is not always provided on site so from the small response from plot holders with communal
storage on site, only 10% of tenants make use of it.
6

Page 46

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
The next set of questions looked at the environmental aspects of owning an allotment. Specifically,
we asked if they tend their plot organically, what (if any) chemicals they use and how they store any
chemicals. Interestingly there is a strong drive towards sustainability and green credentials with 93%
of plot holder being either fully or partially organic.

Organic?

Fully

Partially

Not

Chemicals used on site were as follows:

Chemicals Used
Other

Peat Based compost

Slug Pellets

Glyphosate

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Series 1

The following question tells us that 60% store their chemicals on site, either locked away in their
shed or a cabinet.

Do you compost waste?
Overwhelmingly the tenants do compost their own green waste on site with 95% of people doing so.
This again points to the environmental awareness of plot holders and how they can help.
7

Page 47

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Do you have Glass on your plot?
Glass, and the disposal of, is a large problem on allotments sites. Recently Officers suggested that
glass should be prevented from being brought on to site as if is often broken and can cause hazards.
Two thirds of plot holders have glass on their site however this doesn’t tell the whole picture.

Glass Location
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0
bin stores

Ground

Cold Frame

greenhouse

Shed

summer house

Series 1

The graph shows most glass is where we would expect it – sheds, green houses and cold frames.
However, there is some in the ground, smashed up which can be a major problem when cultivating
the land.

Do you store equipment not associated with gardening on your plot?
Given issues with fly tipping on some sites and plots across the borough, this was a good response
with only 6% of respondents doing so. This however does need to be reduced and all allotments
should be free from items not needed on site.

The next phase of questions looked at the support available on site in terms of associations and
providing help on site for others. When asked ‘Does your site have an Association or Federation?’
most knew but surprisingly 18% didn’t know, suggesting groups need to have a higher profile on
sites.

18%
Yes

20%

No

62%

8

Don't Know

Page 48

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
On further questioning, 27% of plot holders on sites with Associations or Federations do not know
who is on their committee which again highlights the lack of awareness of the groups on sites.
When asked about helping on their site more, the plot holders gave the following views:

Assisting on Site
200
180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20
0
Helping New
Tenants

Those with a
disability

Setting up or
helping
association
Yes

Organising Events

No

Maintain
Communal Areas

Other help

Maybe

From this we can see that there is support to assist other plot holders on site including new tenants
and those with a disability. There is also some support for helping to maintain communal areas on
site too. There is not a strong desire to help with an Association and a very strong desire not to help
organise events on site.

Are you Happy with the way Allotments are managed and inspected?
This question showed more people are happy compared to those that are not (54%)

MANAGEMENT
Yes

No

46%
54%

9

Page 49

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Should allotments get external accreditation awards?
This question investigated whether plot holders felt sites should get independent quality awards
such as Community Green Flag accreditation. Just under half (48%) felt that independent quality
awards should be applied for with a further 38% not sure if allotment sites should do this. Any
external accreditation would need to be applied for as a site with some support from Green Sefton
in a similar way to other community groups working within Green Sefton sites.

What improvements should be made if money was available?
This question as plot holders to rank their priorities for improvements on site. This will obviously
vary from site to site and a more detailed analysis can develop individual site improvements based
on answers given. Broadly the return showed a lack of support for providing management support
and advice but more support for investment in the infrastructure on site. The chart below shows
which elements where the most popular with improvements in toilets, drainage and access being
the top three improvements.

Toilet Facilities
Drainage
Better access
Perimeter Fencing
Composting facilities
Fencing around plots
Tree maintenance
Better inspections by staff
Horticulture advice
0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

One of the ideas for managing allotments in Sefton was to create an allotment forum managed by
officers, run by volunteers from all allotment sites. The question was there for posed ‘Have you
heard about the new allotment forum being planned?’
It comes as no real shock that most plot holders hadn’t heard about it – only 14% had heard of the
plan. The next question looked at would people get involved in one and 58% of people wouldn’t get
involved in a forum for allotment holders indicating no real support for the development of such a
forum within existing tenants.
10

Page 50

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
The next part of the survey was for those on the waiting lists only.

How long have you been on the waiting list?
This question gave us an idea of how long people have been waiting for an allotment.

Waiting Times
1-2 years, 192
200
180
160
140
120

3-5 years, 104

Less than 1 year, 97

100

longer than 5 years,
58

80
60
40

unknown, 10

20
0
Less than 1 year

1-2 years

3-5 years

longer than 5
years

unknown

People

The data clearly shows that the majority of people have been waiting less than 5 years for their plot.
The length of time on waiting lists are of course determined by tenants giving up plots or being
removed for non-cultivation. The length waiting times could also be due to a large number of
residents who registered for an allotment during the lockdowns.

Where did you hear about allotments?
This showed most people knew of allotments via family or friends (47%) with other ways and the
website being the next most popular.

Website, 78, 17%
Other, 139, 30%

Family/friend, 218,
47%

Social Media, 9, 2%
Newspaper, 3, 1%
Community Group,
14, 3%

11

Page 51

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Which site are you interested in?

Site applied for
Hatton Hill
Gardener Avenue
Queensway
Dunningsbridge Road
Browns Lane
Beach Road
Sherwood Avenue
Scape Lane
Hoggs Hill
Altcar Road
Town Lane
Birkdale Irrigation
Moss Lane
Blundell Lane
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

We can see from this that all sites are popular with larger sites being more popular.

Why do you want an allotment?
This question gave a range of interesting answers but in reality most wanted to grow their own food,
enjoy the outdoors and have the health benefits of doing so.

Why do you want an allotment?

1%
20%

To grow own food

24%

To grow plants
Exercise/Health benefits
To meet others

12%

Peace and quiet

15%

Enjoy the outdoors

10%

Other

18%

12

Page 52

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
How long are you prepared to wait for an allotment?
Obviously turn-over of allotment sites depends on removing not cultivators and those giving up their
plot for various reasons. Having said that most people are prepared to wait at least two years before
getting a plot.

How long are you prepared to wait?

Less than 1 year

1-2 Years

3-5 Years

Longer than 5 Years

Would you consider sharing an allotment?
Those on waiting lists are generally do not to share a plot presumably as they want their own plot.
Sefton has a policy of only letting half plots in a bid to reduce waiting times but thought of reducing
these futher would create more issues including car parking and access.

Would you share a plot?

0

50

100

150

200
Yes

250
No

300

350

400

450

500

Column1

The final few questions were for all to complete including equalities monitoring information.

13

Page 53

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Which of these environmental considerations do you feel are most important for Allotment
holders?
Reducing pollution for Insecticides and
herbicides
Wildlife friendly practices
Recycling

Composting
Reducing Carbon footprint
Reducing water consumption
Peat free policy
Renewable Energy
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

From the rankings we can see that most people felt it was most important to reduce pollution,
protect wildlife and recycle or compost where possible. There was also some support for a peat free
policy on allotments – peat being an important carbon store.
The final question was an opportunity to tell us anything else. As you can imagine with over 800
responses to the survey there were a wide range of further comments. Some of the more frequent
comments were around getting empty plots lettable and removing non cultivators with a strong
support for Green Sefton to clear empty plots to re-let them. There was also support for annual
updates on waiting lists position for those waiting. The graph below details all the responses in a
simple chart.

14

Page 54

30

20

10

15

Agenda Item 7

Page 55

0
abide by statutes
action plan for allotments needed
admin cost payable over 1year
allow fires
allow larger sheds
annual waiting list update
association need support
ban children
better on site facilities
care for wildlife
clarify what the income is spent on
community appeal
community controlled
community orchard needed
cost should equal facilities
disagree with none sefton residents getting a plot
donate excess produce to foodbanks
factfile for season on website
fix entrance roads
fixed term tenancies
flooding issues
GS to get overgrown plots letable
half plot should be half price
help clear vacant plots
horticulture training programme should be in place
improve communication
improve health and wellbeing
improve management
improve mental health
Improve water points
inspect more often
investment needed
learn from self managed sites
let empty plots
lighting
love gardening
maintain communal areas
manage fly tipping
merge small plots
more sites needed
more skips
new builds should provide
night time safety
No bees hives - some people are afraid and allergic
No Chickens
offer plots to schools
one plot per person
Organic use only
parking
pest control
plot holder collective for bulk buying
prevent trespass
priority given to those with health issues and then those without…
priority given to under 50's
provide parking
quarter plots
raised beds for wheelchair users
regular tree chippings
remove non cultivators
resource more
secure perimeter
should be free for council tax payers
site speed limit
teach children where food comes from
to grow fruit and veg
toilet needed
too expensive
volunteer scheme to help clear plots
volunteers to support those struggling
waiting too long
would pay more

Agenda Item 7a

70

60

50

40

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Equalities Data
The following information gives some equalities date on those that completed the questionnaire.
There was a fairly even split of male to females responding and mostly those who responded were
over 40.
Age
There were 797 responses to this part of the question.

Under 18
18 - 29
30 - 39
40 - 49
50 – 59
60 - 69
70 - 79
80 - 84
Prefer not to say
Not Answered
0

50

100

150

Option
Under 18
18 - 29
30 - 39
40 - 49
50 – 59
60 - 69
70 - 79
80 - 84
85+
Prefer not to say

200

Total
1
28
125
156
211
187
65
6
0
18
16

Page 56

250

Percent
0.12%
3.44%
15.34%
19.14%
25.89%
22.94%
7.98%
0.74%
0.00%
2.21%

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Not Answered

18

2.21%

Total
380
372
3
36
24

Percent
46.63%
45.64%
0.37%
4.42%
2.94%

What Sex Are You
There were 791 responses to this part of the question.
Option
Male
Female
Non-binary
Prefer not to say
Not Answered
Other sex:
There were 2 responses to this part of the question

Do you live in the gender you were given at birth?

3%

6%

1%

Not Answered
Prefer not to say
No
Yes

90%

Option
Yes
No
Prefer not to say
Not Answered

Total
737
5
45
28

17

Page 57

Percent
90.43%
0.61%
5.52%
3.44%

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
How would you describe your sexual orientation?
There were 782 responses to this part of the question.

Heterosexual/straight
Lesbian
Gay
Bisexual
Prefer not to say
Not Answered
0

100

200

300

400

500

Option
Heterosexual/straight
Lesbian
Gay
Bisexual
Prefer not to say
Not Answered

600

700

Total
673
9
14
7
79
33

800

Percent
82.58%
1.10%
1.72%
0.86%
9.69%
4.05%

Disability: Do you have any of the following (please tick all that apply):
Physical Impairment
Visual impairment
Learning Difficulty
Hearing impairment/deaf
Learning Disability
Long-term illness that affects your dail…
Autism/Asperger’s
Mental health condition

Prefer not to say
Not Answered
0

100

18

200

300

Page 58

400

500

600

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Option
Physical Impairment
Visual impairment
Learning Difficulty
Hearing impairment/deaf
Learning Disability
Long-term illness that affects your daily life
Autism/Asperger’s
Mental health condition
Dementia
Prefer not to say
Not Answered

Total
44
16
11
24
2
73
8
61
0
108
541

Percent
5.40%
1.96%
1.35%
2.94%
0.25%
8.96%
0.98%
7.48%
0.00%
13.25%
66.38%

Consider disabled?
There were 152 responses to this part of the question.

Please read the following statement …
If you have ticked any of the boxes abov
e, or you have cancer, diabetes or HIV t
his would be classed as ‘disability’ und…
Not Answered
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

Option
Please read the following statement …
If you have ticked any of the boxes above, or you have cancer,
diabetes or HIV this would be classed as ‘disability’ under the
legislation. Do you consider yourself to be ‘disabled’?

Total
88
64

Percent
10.80%
7.85%

Not Answered

663

81.35%

If you have ticked any of the boxes above, or you have cancer, diabetes or HIV this
would be classed as 'disability' under the legislation. Do you consider yourself to be
'disabled'?
There were 514 responses to this part of the question.

19

Page 59

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Yes

No

Prefer not to say

Not Answered
0

50

100

150

200

250

Option
Yes
No
Prefer not to say
Not Answered

300

Total
73
363
78
301

350

400

Percent
8.96%
44.54%
9.57%
36.93%

A carer is someone who provides unpaid support/care for a family member, friend etc
who needs help with their day-to-day life; because they are disabled, have a longterm illness or they are elderly. Are you a carer?
Not Answered

Prefer not to say

Yes, 50 or more hours a week

Yes, 1- 19 hours a week

Yes, 20 – 49 hours per week

No

10%
7%
3%
7%
4%
69%

Option
No

Total
568
20

Page 60

Percent
69.69%

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Yes, 20 – 49 hours per week
Yes, 1- 19 hours a week
Yes, 50 or more hours a week
Prefer not to say
Not Answered

32
55
26
55
79

3.93%
6.75%
3.19%
6.75%
9.69%

Total
237
419
2
3
0
0
97
57

Percent
29.08%
51.41%
0.25%
0.37%
0.00%
0.00%
11.90%
6.99%

What is your religion/belief?
Option
No
religion/belief
Christian
Hindu
Muslim
Jewish
Sikh
Prefer not to say
Not Answered

Ethnicity – do you identify as:
Prefer not to say
Asian or Asian British
Asian Indian
Black British
Mixed Ethnic Background
White and Black Caribbean
White and Black African
White and Asian

White Welsh/English/Scottish/Northern
White Irish/British
Irish
Not Answered
0

50

100

150

Option
Prefer not to say
Asian or Asian British
Asian Indian

200

250

300

Total
65
1
1
21

Page 61

350

400

450

Percent
7.98%
0.12%
0.12%

Agenda Item 7
Agenda Item 7a
Asian Bangladeshi
Asian Pakistani
Black Asian
Chinese
Black African
Black Caribbean
Black British
Mixed Ethnic Background
White and Black Caribbean
White and Black African
White and Asian
White Welsh/English/Scottish/Northern
White Irish/British
Irish
Gypsy/Irish Traveller
Roma
Not Answered

0
0
0
0
0
0
2
8
1
1
4
389
266
3
0
0
74

22

Page 62

0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.25%
0.98%
0.12%
0.12%
0.49%
47.73%
32.64%
0.37%
0.00%
0.00%
9.08%

Agenda Item 7b
Allotment Survey Questions
Purpose of the survey? To gather information about current satisfaction with facilities and services provided and use
feedback to develop allotment strategy which will be consulted on before adoption.
Are you an allotment holder?
Yes (go to section B already have an allotment / current tenants
No (go to section A people who don’t have an allotment / Considering taking on an allotment)
Section A for people who don’t have an allotment:
Yes

No

If yes how long have you been waiting less than a year, 1-2 years, 3-5 years, longer than 5 years
How did you learn about sites website, family member /friend has one / community group/ other please state
Which site (s) are you interested in please state
Why do you want an allotment? what do you think benefits will be? Tick all that apply
To grow own food, to grow other produce, for exercise / health, to meet other people, a place for peace and quiet, to enjoy being
outdoors, other please state
How long are you prepared to wait? less than a year, 1-2 years, 3-5 years, longer than 5 years
Would you consider sharing a plot with other tenants?

Yes

No

Do you think the current rental costs in Sefton are reasonable? Yes

No

Section B To everyone:

Would you pay more for:
1

Agenda Item 7

Page 63

Are you on the waiting list for an allotment?

a regular skip on site?

Yes

No

More staff support/supervision

Yes

No

communal storage on site?

Yes

No

water supply

Yes

No

dedicated parking

Yes

No

Page 64

more investment into allotment sites
Yes
No
Do you think there should be concessions on rental?
Yes
No
(e.g lower rates for pensioners, unemployed, etc)
Would you be happy to pay a higher rental to help provide free plots and concessions for others (as above)?
No
Do you think there should be free plots for specific groups and individuals?
(e.g. charities, registered disabled)
Yes
No

Yes

Social and natural capital questions (Climate change and biodiversity)
Which of these environmental considerations do you consider are most important for allotment holders? Please rank
Reducing carbon footprint – carbon neutral
Reducing water consumption
Peat free policy
Renewable energy
Composting
Recycling
Reducing pollution from use of insecticides / herbicides
Wildlife friendly practices – eg providing nesting sites and space for pollinators
Health and wellbeing questions
Which of these health and wellbeing considerations do you consider are most important for allotment holders? Please
Rank
Learning opportunities – to encourage environmentally friendly growing, to encourage young people, to share good practice across
the Sefton allotment community
2

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 7b

Agenda Item 7b
Developing community growing - eg outlets for excess produce eg shared plots for people who might not be able to keep up a full
plot
Social opportunities – as above plus communal events and activities
Social prescribing – supporting people with health issues and recovering from illness through growing
Volunteering opportunities
Have you heard about the new Sefton Allotment Forum?
Yes
No
Would you be interested in getting involved in the forum ?(eg as a rep for your site, contributing to ideas and development of
strategy) Yes
No

3

Not applicable

Agenda Item 7

Page 65

Section C
About your site / plot
Which allotment site are you a tenant on? Choose from list
How long have you been a tenant?
0-2 years
2-5 years
5-10 years 10 years +
Thinking about the allotment site you are a tenant on please rate the following facilities / services:
Item
Very satisfied
Satisfied
Neither
Dissatisfied
Very
dissatisfied
Pathways access?
water supply
toilet
composting facility
communal hut/store
Growing conditions
Management of vacant or
untended plots
waste disposal
Level of Vandalism/graffiti
Condition of Fencing
around individual plots

Security of site
car parking
site information
Fly tipping
Dog fouling
vehicle access
Personal safety
Flooding
Other (please state)
verbatum comments here or ask them to pick say the top 3 issues on their site

Page 66

How do you travel to your plot?
state

Car

Public Transport

Walk

Bicycle

Other please

How many hours do you spend on your allotment per week in summer? 1-2hr
20hrs+

2-5hr

6-10hr

11-20hr

How many hours do you spend on your allotment per week in winter?
20hrs+

2-5hr

6-10hr

11-20hr

Herbs

Fungi

What do you grow on your plot? (tick all that apply) Vegetables Fruit
Do you use skips provided on site?
Do you use communal storage on site?

Yes

Flowers

No
Yes

No

4

1-2hr

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 7b

Agenda Item 7b
Are you an organic gardener?

Fully Organic

Partially organic

What chemicals / products do you use? None
glypohosate,
other please state
Where do you store chemicals and how? (tick all that apply) On my plot
cabinet
shelves shed
Do you compost green waste?
Yes
No

Not Organic
slug pellets
at home

peat based compost

don’t use any

locked

If yes, do you know who is your site association or federation representative?
Would you like to be more involved with your site ?

Yes

No

If yes, what would you be interested in?
Helping new tenants
Helping tenants with mobility impairments or other disabilities
Setting up / joining a site association
Organising events
Helping maintain communal areas such paths
Other please state
Are you happy with how sites are managed and inspected?

Yes

If not why not – verbatum comments

5

No

Yes

No

Agenda Item 7

Page 67

Is there any glass on your plot (part of buildings or stored / tipped)? Yes
No
If yes where is it located? Shed eg window, greenhouse panes, cold frame, smashed in ground, stored on plot
Do you ever use your plot to store equipment not associated with growing on your allotment? Yes
No
If yes then why? Please state
Does your site have an association or federation? Yes
no
Not sure

Do you think allotments should get external accreditation awards? (eg Green Flag Status, as a way to improve standards)
Yes

No

Not sure

What improvements would you like to see at your site? Please tick all that apply then pick top 5

Page 68

None
Toilet facilities
Horticulture advice
Perimeter Fencing
Better access for all
Better Inspection of plots by COUNCIL?
Composting facilities
Tree maintenance
Fencing around plots
Other please state

6

Agenda Item 7

Agenda Item 7b

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item 8
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel
Date:

Friday 11th March 2022

Title:

Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity –
Re-designation of Selective and Additional (HMO) Licensing Schemes

Report of:

Clare Taylor – Housing Standards Team Manager

1.

Purpose of the Report
1.1

2.

Background
2.1

3.

To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being
developed with regard to the Re-designation of Selective and
Additional (HMO) Licensing Schemes

The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is
to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and
consultation.

Selective and Additional (HMO) Licensing
3.1

Section 80 of the Housing Act 2004 gives powers to local authorities to
designate areas as subject to Selective Licensing provided that certain
conditions are met. A Selective Licensing designation may be made if
the area to which it relates satisfies one or more of the following
conditions. The area is one experiencing:
•
•
•
•
•
•

low housing demand (or is likely to become such an area)
a significant and persistent problem caused by anti-social behaviour
(ASB)
poor property conditions
high levels of migration
high level of deprivation
high levels of crime

Section 80(9) on the Housing Act 2004 states that when considering
designating an area the local housing authority must:
(a)

take reasonable steps to consult persons who are likely to be
affected by the designation
(b) consider any representations made in accordance with the
consultation and not withdrawn.

Page 69

Page 1 of 9

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item 8
The Selective Licensing area proposed is Bootle, which contains the
highest rate of Private Rented Sector properties across the Borough at
25.5%.
A map of the proposed area of Bootle can be found at Appendix 1
An estimated 3,000 licensable PRS properties are expected across this
proposed designation.
The Selective Licensing designation includes the following electoral wards
Derby, Linacre and Litherland.
3.2

Additional (HMO) Licensing under section 56 of the Housing Act 2004
allows the Local Authority to extend the Mandatory HMO licensing scheme
to include other types of House in Multiple Occupation (HMO). A Local
Authority must consider that a significant proportion of the HMOs of a
defined description, in either a designated area or across the whole of the
Borough are being managed insufficiently enough to give rise to one or
more particular problems either for those occupying the property or for
members of the public. Sefton proposes to include all properties within any
prescribed definition of HMO across the proposed Additional (HMO)
Licensing re-designation.
Those HMOs that fall within the definition of section 257 of the Housing
Act 2004, such as converted blocks of flats, are not subject to mandatory
licensing, and local authorities that wish to license such properties need
to follow the approval steps for Additional (HMO) Licensing. Sefton’s
proposal for Additional (HMO) Licensing includes all properties defined
under section 257.
Before making an additional HMO licensing designation for a particular
area, a Local Authority must:
(a) Consider that a significant proportion of the HMOs of that description
in the area are being managed sufficiently ineffectively as to give
rise, or to be likely to give rise, to one or more particular problems
either for those occupying the HMOs or for members of the public
(b) Have regard to any information regarding the extent to which any
codes of practice approved under section 233 have been complied
with by persons managing HMOs in the area
(c) Consider whether there are any other courses of action available to
them (of whatever nature) that might provide an effective method of
dealing with the problem or problems in question
(d) That making the designation will significantly assist them to deal with
the problem or problems (whether or not they take any other course
of action as well)
(e) Consult persons likely to be affected by the designation.
The Additional (HMO) Licensing area proposed includes parts of Seaforth,
Waterloo, Brighton-le-Sands, and central Southport, which are areas that
have above the national average of flats/maisonettes within the PRS and

Page 70

Page 2 of 9

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item 8
have a significant stock of larger style properties that in recent years have
been prone to conversion, to either bedsits or self-contained flats.
Maps of the proposed areas can be found at Appendix 2 .An estimated 220
licensable PRS properties are expected across this proposed designation.
The Additional Licensing designations include the following electoral wards:
Southport – Cambridge, Dukes and Kew
Waterloo/Brighton-le-Sands/Seaforth – Blundellsands, Church and parts of
Victoria
3.3

Cabinet considered and approved a business case which justifies the reintroduction of these schemes against the legal criteria. A copy of the report
and Decisions can be found at; http://smbc-modgov03/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=139&MId=10384&Ver=4
Among the Decisions were the following:

(2)

approval be given to a 12-week public consultation on the proposals for the
implementation of the schemes

(3)

the Head of Economic Growth and Housing be granted delegated authority
in consultation with the Cabinet Member - Communities and Housing, to:

(i)

procure and appoint consultants to undertake the required public
consultation on the 3 proposed schemes,

3.4

Legal Consultation Requirement
To implement Selective and Additional (HMO) licensing, Sefton Council is
required to undertake a full consultation and as stated in the Housing Act
2004, this should include consultation of local residents, including tenants,
landlords and where appropriate their managing agents and other
members of the community who live or operate businesses or provide
services within the proposed designation. It should also include local
residents and those who operate businesses or provide services in the
surrounding area outside the proposed designation that potentially could
be affected. The consultation should be widely publicised using various
channels of communication. The consultation should last for a minimum
of 10 weeks. (Sefton have chosen to conduct the consultation over a 12week period).
Following the completion of the consultation the results will be published
and made available to the local community. This will be in the form of a
summary of the responses received and demonstrate how these have
either been acted on or not, giving reasons.
The consultant is required to produce a consultation delivery plan, conduct
a full consultation for both Selective and Additional (HMO) licensing and
produce and deliver a final consultation feedback report for both Selective
and Additional (HMO) licensing areas. The consultation exercise is to take
place over a 12-week period commencing, no later than 1 May 2022.

Page 71

Page 3 of 9

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item 8

4.

The Consultation
4.1

The consultation will be undertaken by an independent consultancy that
will be procured by Sefton Council. Stakeholders will be asked to give
their views on whether they are in favour with continuing the licensing
schemes, do they agree with the proposed licence conditions, do they
feel that the licence fee is set correctly and have Sefton chosen the
correct areas on the borough to designate as licensable areas.

4.2

Publicising the consultation
The consultation will be publicised prior to taking place and also during
the consultation period to provide several opportunities for interested
parties to be aware of it. This will include local newspapers, relevant social
media, press releases and Sefton council websites for example, across
the borough.
We would look to advertise the consultation prior to its expected start date
the latest being 1 May 2022 and again at weeks 4, 8 and 11 during the
consultation period,
Local papers/websites where adverts/press releases are going to be
issued will include:
• Liverpool Echo
• Champion
• Southport Visitor
Advertising the consultation via the Liverpool Echo, Champion and Visitor
Group will help promote it sufficiently outside of the borough.
All of the consultation materials, business case, appendices, will be
available on the Council’s website and include the links to the relevant
online surveys.
It is important that this consultation is as robust as possible, to avoid the
prospect of the Council’s final proposals for Licensing in the borough being
challenged on the basis of an inadequate consultation.

4.3

Consultation tools
The consultant will provide a combined briefing document and
questionnaire to gauge levels of support for/against the licensing scheme
redesignation that are being considered by the Council, together with the
proposed licence fees. Consultation documents will be available online
and in hard copy with consideration being given to ensure all documents
meet the accessible information standard. We will provide the consultant
with ward profiles to assist them in deciding on the method of
engagement.

Page 72

Page 4 of 9

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item 8
The survey will collect information on the respondent, such as whether
they are a resident inside or outside the borough and/or a private landlord,
a business, PRS tenant, etc, along with other key demographic, socioeconomic and protected characteristics (e.g., gender, age, ethnicity,
tenure, etc). This and other protected characteristics information can then
be used to inform the impact assessment.
The questionnaire will allow for the different methodologies which include
online, paper and telephone, with questions remaining the same to allow
results to be compiled and compared across the different methods.
The consultation document will provide detailed information around the
licensing schemes and background information, the licensing proposals,
fees and calculations, details around the consultation and the decisionmaking process.
4.4

Consultation methodology
There are several different methodologies that will be used to consult with
parties that may be affected by or have views on the proposals.
A telephone number, helpline and dedicated email address will be
provided for anyone that wishes to provide feedback in an alternative way,
wishes to complete a survey by telephone or has any questions or queries
regarding the consultation. The consultant will also provide a paper survey
with a Freepost return address were requested and meet the accessible
information standard. This will ensure that the methodology is as inclusive
as possible.
a. Online survey for all interested parties to complete
An online survey will be designed with a link hosted on the Council’s
website, which will be promoted through advertisements, on all paper
surveys (as an alternative means of completion) and within all other
promotional literature. Consideration will also be given to include a quick
response (QR barcode) to enable responses from smartphones and tablet
computers for a direct link to the survey.
b. E-shots/mailings to landlords, agents, businesses and
community groups
The online survey will primarily be the tool to encourage landlords, agents,
businesses, and other stakeholders to engage. Electronic mail is a quick
and more accessible way to get to individuals directly and allows them to
participate at a time and place of their choosing. We will use email
addresses from the current Selective and Additional licensing schemes of
all those licence holders and associated interested parties.
We will look to put together a list of known email addresses of business
via Invest Sefton, community groups (Sefton CVS) (particularly those who
support residents from a protected characteristics group) etc so that we
can do an e-shot to engage with these groups and encourage them to take
part in the consultation.

Page 73

Page 5 of 9

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item 8
c. Postal survey of selective licensing area
To consult with tenants who live in the proposed redesignated selective
licensing area of Bootle, a mail shot will be sent to all licensed properties
to encourage tenants to take part in the on-line survey. This will be to
approximately 3000 households within the area. A phone number will also
be provided should completion over the phone be preferred or if recipients
have any queries or questions.
All returns will be sent directly to the consultant’s offices via the freepost
envelope.
d. Postal survey of Additional HMO licensing areas
There are only around 220 properties across the 6 wards that are currently
licensed. We will look to mailshot the occupiers of these properties.
e. Wider residents survey (representative sample by ward)
The methodology is not yet fully agreed with the consultants however we
are required to gain a robust and representative sample of views from
residents across the borough. A telephone survey may be a way to
achieve this and would comprise carrying out such a survey across the
whole of Sefton, representative by ward, age, and gender (+/-3%
confidence interval).
This telephone survey would, therefore, include not only the wards that
will be affected directly, but also those wards surrounding the areas
proposed for selective and additional licensing, providing an opportunity
for tenants, landlords, residents, and local businesses in the area to
participate.
f. Hosting/ attending events/meetings to discuss consultation
The consultant will hold a number of online events/meetings (of up to 2
hours) with landlords, tenants, residents, local businesses and any other
interested parties. The purpose is to provide participants with background
information on the reason(s) for re-designating the schemes and gather
feedback on the proposals.
These will be a mixture of daytime and evening events. The events will
typically allow up to 30 attendees to ensure that the meetings are
manageable.
Meeting invitations will be included within the consultation questionnaire.
Interested parties will be asked to contact the consultant to book a place
in advance.
g. Wider stakeholder consultation
A number of interviews will be undertaken by telephone with wider
stakeholders by the consultant, to gather more in-depth information
around views and experiences. A final list is currently being drawn up but
is likely to include the following:

Page 74

Page 6 of 9

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item 8
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Local resident groups
Landlords associations (such as the NRLA)
Local letting agents
Local authority licensing officers in all of the neighbouring boroughs
Housing associations
Merseyside Police
Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service
Citizens Advice
Selected third sector/local organisations, who specialise in
housing/PRS (such as Shelter and Crisis)
Any other interested party identified by the council

Where the consultant is unable to undertake an interview, the organisation
would be sent an email requesting their participation in the consultation
via the online survey, or to provide written feedback to the consultant
directly, to ensure all groups have an opportunity to participate in the
consultation.
The consultant would contact the organisations/individuals requesting
them to take part in the consultation (giving the background). A
convenient time would be booked with them to undertake a telephone
interview and the consultation documentation outlining the schemes
would be sent to them to allow the responder time to consider the
proposals. The email would also contain a link to the online survey if they
felt that they would prefer to offer their views via the survey.
4.5

Considerations given to inclusiveness for hard to reach/protected
characteristics groups
The methods and promotional channels being used will provide the
opportunity for individuals from hard to reach and protected characteristics
groups, to participate in the consultation. These include:
•

•

•
•

Gathering a representative sample of residents by ward, age and
gender. Through this process, a proportion of respondents will
inevitably be from protected characteristic groups. Questions will be
included within the survey to capture these characteristics.
Information about the consultation including online meetings and
links to the survey will be sent directly to organisations support and
work with individuals from hard to reach/protected characteristic
groups. Organisations will be asked to promote the survey via social
media/appropriate channels and forums and forward the email to
members/users.
By providing different methods for completing the survey and
providing feedback, including online, paper/hard copy and telephone,
easy read, ensures that the survey will be inclusive.
The consultant can support a number of community languages to
help those, who wish to, take part in the consultation in their preferred
language.

Page 75

Page 7 of 9

Agenda Item 8
Agenda Item 8
•

The survey will gather data around individuals who have taken part,
those who have a protected characteristic, to monitor levels of
participation. It will allow us to promote the consultation to specific
groups if it is felt that they are not represented and/or have not had
an opportunity to participate.

Once the consultation has been completed the results will be published
and made available to the local community on Sefton Council’s website.
4.6

Implications for Service
There are no implications to services due to an external consultancy
undertaking the consultation, as approved by Cabinet.

5.

Reporting and Publishing the Findings
5.1

6.

Legal Department Comments
6.1

7.

Once the consultation has been completed the results will be published
and made available to the local community on Sefton Council’s website.
Including being published on the Consultation Hub on the ‘We Asked,
You Said, We Did’ page.

Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans
contained in this report and has no comments to make.

Recommendations
7.1

The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to:
a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the Redesignation of Selective and Additional (HMO) Licensing
Schemes
b)

Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of
their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation.

Page 76

Page 8 of 9

Agenda Item 8

Page 9 of 9

Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

Audience

Message(s)

General public (inc all relevant parties to be Pre-notification of licensing consultation taking place
between April-July 2022
informed)

Consultation around licensing - inviting views from
Tenants, residents, landlords and businesses those living in Licensed properties.
in Bootle
Licensing consultation - further information and
invitation to provide feedback
Consultation around licensing - inviting views from
Tenants, residents, landlords and businesses those living in streets affected by licensing
in/around Additional licensing areas
Licensing consultation - further information and
invitation to provide feedback

Landlords/agents in Sefton

Consultation around licensing - inviting views from
landlords living in Sefton
Licensing consultation - further information and
invitation to provide feedback

Media/vehicle

Frequency

Press release in local papers
Council website
Council social media
Email partner orgs
Council website
Council social media
Email partner orgs

Page 79

Responsibility

Feedback mechanism

1 week prior to consultation To be confirmed

Sefton Council

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

Consultation week 4

To be confirmed

Sefton Council

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

To be confirmed

Sefton Council

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

To be confirmed

Sefton Council

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

To be confirmed

Consultant

Online link and telephone number to survey. Paper copy & easy read available on request

To be confirmed

Consultant

Online link and telephone number to survey. Paper copy & easy read available on request

To be confirmed

Consultant

Online link and telephone number to survey. Paper copy & easy read available on request

To be confirmed

Consultant

Online link and telephone number to survey. Paper copy & easy read available on request

To be confirmed

Consultant

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

To be confirmed

Consultant

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

To be confirmed

Consultant

Online link and telephone number to survey. Paper copy & easy read available on request

Consultation week 1

To be confirmed

Consultant

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

2 follow up reminders to
non-respondents

To be confirmed

Consultant

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

1 week prior to consultation To be confirmed

Consultant

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys

Indepth interviews with
selected key stakeholders

To be confirmed

Consultant

In depth interview

Consultation week 1

To be confirmed

Consultation week 8

To be confirmed

Council website
Consultation week 8
Council social media
Email partner orgs
Press release in local papers
Council website
Consultation week 11
Council social media
Email partner orgs
Letter/info about the consultation with
Consultation week 1
link to on-line survey
Over 12 week consultation
On-line meetings/presentations
period
Letter/info about the consultation with
Consultation week 1
link to on-line survey
Over 12 week consultation
On-line meetings/presentations
period
Email
Email reminders
On-line meetings/presentations

Businesses/community groups in Sefton

Consultation around licensing - inviting views from
Email
landlords living in Sefton.Licensing consultation further information and invitation to provide feedback Email reminders

Stakeholders

Pre-notification of licensing consultation taking place
Email
between April-July 2022
Consultation around licensing - gathering feedback on
Telephone interviews
views and experiences in Sefton/licensing

Consultation week 1
2 follow up reminders to
non-respondents
Over 12 week consultation
period

Timing

Press release in local papers

Residents and businesses in Neighbouring
boroughs

Notification of licensing consultation taking place in
Sefton and inviting views (until July 2022)

Council website
Council social media
Email (where possible) to
landlords/agents/tenants, where lists
are held

TBA Sefton Council/consultant Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys. Paper copy & easy read available on request.

Press release in local papers
Council website
Council social media

TBA Sefton Council/consultant

Link to council website page hosting consultation documents/links to surveys. Paper copy & easy read available on request.

Email (where possible) to
landlords/agents/tenants, where lists
are held

Agenda Item 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel
Date:

Friday 11th March 2022

Title:

Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity –
Botanic Gardens Improvements Public Consultation

Report of:

Mark Shaw & Andy Cutts – Green Sefton

1.

Purpose of the Report
1.1

2.

Background
2.1

3.

The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is
to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and
consultation.

Name of Issue you are Consulting On
3.1

4.

To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being
developed with regard to the Botanic Gardens Improvements Public
Consultation.

Sefton MBC (Green Sefton) manages Botanic Gardens in Southport and
are looking to consult with local residents on future improvements to the
park. This will allow the Council to better understand the public priorities
for the park in the future subject to possible new funding. The park is a
popular green space in Southport and has several key heritage and
recreational features. With decreasing public sector funding these
facilities have been diminishing for several years and requires urgent
investment.

The Consultation
4.1

The consultation will ask residents and key stake holders for the park
what their future priorities are both in relation to both recreational and
heritage value. This follows the recent decision to explore the
development of a Heritage Lottery Bid for funding for the park to help
develop and improve the park. This consultation will allow us to better
understand the priorities for the park and local community so we can
fund new projects/ improvements that meet the needs of the community
and park.
Key stakeholders include the Ward Councillors, Botanic Gardens
Development Task Group, Botanic Gardens Community Association and
park volunteer groups, local community of all ages and backgrounds,
visitors and non-users and local businesses and other relevant
organisations.

Page 81

Page 1 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
The consultation will run from the 17th June 2022 to the 16th September
2022. This will be undertaken using an online survey that will be posted
on social media and advertised locally with local existing volunteer
groups for the park. Posters will be used in the park to promote the
consultation and paper copies provided on request. The consultation will
launch the weekend of the Botanic Gardens Fun Day on the 19th June
and promoted throughout the community event.
A potential barrier is that the consultation will take place through the busy
summer holiday period. However, if insufficient numbers are not
achieved there will be an option to extend the consultation to the end of
September.
5.

Reporting and Publishing the Findings
5.1

6.

Legal Department Comments
6.1

7.

All findings will be published on Sefton Councils website and via social
media as well at the park. A link to the final report will be published and
all groups participating will be notified of the findings. This will be
undertaken in October/ November 2022.

Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans
contained in this report and has no comments to make.

Recommendations

7.1

The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to:
a)

Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the
Botanic Garden Improvements Public Consultation

b)

Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of
their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation.

Page 82

Page 2 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
Annexes
Questionnaire Example:
Green Sefton in partnership with the Botanic Gardens Task Group and Community
Association are looking at improving the facilities within Botanic Gardens in
Southport.
This follows the recent decision to explore the option of submitting a bid to the
Heritage Lottery Fund for funding for the park to make significant improvements
across the park.
We would like your opinion on priorities that will help us form a new vision for the
park and help support our bid for funding.
About you – Are you:
Sefton Resident
Local Business
Visitor to the Borough
Other
Please tell us the first part of your postcode (i.e. PR9)
……………………………………………………..
How often do you visit the park? (Please circle)
Daily

Weekly

Monthly

Seasonal

For what reason do you use the park most?
o Passive leisure e.g., relaxing
o Play area
o School pickup/ drop-off
o Walking
o Dog-exercise
o Visit Café
o Other (please state)
How safe do you feel in the park on a scale of 1 to 6?
1
2
3
4
5
6
Not safe
Very safe

How would you rate Botanic Gardens on a scale of 1 to 6?
1
2
3
4
5
6
Poor
Excellent

Page 83

Page 3 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9

How would you rate the existing facilities on a scale of 1 to 6?
1
2
3
4
5
6
Poor
Excellent

How would you rate the heritage value of Botanic Gardens on a scale of 1 to
6?
1
2
3
4
5
6
Poor
Excellent
**Need the above scale under each item
How would you rate the below features in the park for future improvement?
Play area (swings, slide etc.)
Lake
Fernery
Boundary/ Entrances
Aviary
Café
Museum Building
Access (Disabled)
Transport (Parking/ Active Travel/ Cycling)
Ground Maintenance (shrubs, hedges, flower beds, grass cutting, path sweeping)
Bridges
Park Furniture (benches, seats, bins)
Marketing (display board and signage)
Bowling
Toilets
Victorian Garden
Miniature Golf
Dog Control
Lodges
1
Low

2

3

4

5

6
High

How do you travel to the park?
Foot
Car
Bike
Public Transport
Other

Page 84

Page 4 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
Please rank the suggested improvements to the park?
Improved play equipment
1
2
3
4
Low

5

6
High

Fully refurbished museum building and community events space for functions and
weddings
1
2
3
4
5
6
Low
High
Improved heritage features including the park gates and bridges
1
2
3
4
5
6
Low
High
Improved lake with boats for hire
1
2
3
4
5
Low

6
High

Improved marketing and signage
1
2
3
4
5
Low

6
High

Improved site drainage and paths
1
2
3
4
5
Low

6
High

New trees and plants to support wildlife
1
2
3
4
5
6
Low
High
Develop new heritage and education centre for the park
1
2
3
4
5
6
Low
High
Return of site-based gardeners to improve standards of maintenance
1
2
3
4
5
6
Low
High
Develop new income opportunities in the park to generate money to further
improve the park to support maintenance, site staff and events and activities
1
2
3
4
5
6
Low
High
(Rank 1 to 6)

Page 85

Page 5 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
Do you have any other ideas that would improve the park?
………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………………
Would you attend events at the park? (Please tick)
Yes
Maybe
No

Would you be interested in volunteering or helping to arrange activities in
the Park? (Please tick)
Yes

Maybe

No

If you would like to be kept updated on volunteering and events in the park
please provide your email address below. This will only be used by the
Council to contact you about events and volunteering in Botanic Gardens
and you will be able to opt out at any time.
……………………………………………………………………….

How would you like to hear about activities and events?
Noticeboard
Social Media
Website
Posters
Other ……………………………….

Privacy Notice – (Botanic Garden Consultation)
We thank you for participating in this consultation and we value your contribution.
The categories of this information that we collect, process, hold and share
include:
We are collecting personal identifiers as part of this survey which includes IP
address. This is so we can ensure only one response is received per
resident/visitor. Following validation of the data the IP addresses and will be
deleted. The addresses and postcodes will be retained until the data has been
fully analysed and a full report completed.

Page 86

Page 6 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
Why we collect and use this information
The information you provide will help the Council to develop a new vision for
Botanic Gardens.
Storing this information
Any personal information that you provide to the Council as part of this
consultation will be handled and used in compliance with the principles of the UK
General Data Protection Regulation. Regardless of whether it is electronic or on
paper it will be stored and processed securely and deleted within 2 years.
The lawful basis upon which we use this data:
Article 6 of the UK General Data Protection Regulation
6(1)(e) – The processing is necessary for the performance of a task carried out in
the public interest or in the exercise of official authority vested in the controller.
Sefton Council are improving parks and green spaces in the Borough, to
support the Sefton 2030 Vision and its commitment to act on Climate Change.
The Council also asks equality monitoring questions to help it comply with the
Equality Act 2010 to help us understand who is responding to the survey and to
help us ensure that there is equality of opportunity for protected groups of people.
Confidentiality of data:
Your contributions will be anonymised on receipt and your comments will then be
used for research and consultation purposes. Your identity and contact details will
not be published by us at any stage without your consent.
Who we share this information with:
Your personal data will not be shared with any external organisations. Analysis or
reports arising from the consultation will contain anonymised data.
Your personal data is not transferred outside of the UK
Requesting access to your personal data
You have the right, in certain circumstances to:
- Object to processing of personal data that is likely to cause, or is causing
damage or distress
- Prevent processing for the purposes of direct marketing
- Object to decisions being taken by automated means
- In certain circumstances, have inaccurate personal data rectified, blocked,
erased or destroyed; and
The right to lodge a complaint with the supervisory authority (the Information
Commissioner’s Office)
Withdraw consent for the processing where consent is the lawful basis.
To make a request for your personal information or to exercise any of your rights
as set out above, please complete the Individual’s Rights Form found at the
following link on our website or call 0345 140 0845

Page 87

Page 7 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
Privacy policy (sefton.gov.uk)
The contact for this consultation is Green Sefton:
Andy Cutts, Green Sefton Development Officer
greensefton@sefton.gov.uk
Data Protection Officer
Sefton Council’s Data Protection Officer can be contacted at:
E-mail: ino.information@sefton.gov.uk
Telephone: 0345 140 0845

Do you agree for us to use your personal data in this way?
Yes
No

About You
These questions are optional. You can complete as much or as little as you
wish.

1.

How old are you?
Under 18

18 - 29

30 - 39

40 - 49

50 - 59

60 - 69

70 - 79

80 - 84

85+

Prefer not
to say
2.

Are you
Male

Female

Prefer not
to say

3.

Section 7 (1) of the Equality Act states that: ‘A person has the protected
characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo,
is undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for the
purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing physiological or other
attributes of sex.

Page 88

Page 8 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
Are you proposing to undergo, are undergoing or have undergone a
process of reassigning your sex?
Yes
3a

Prefer not to say

If you answered ‘yes’ to the above, do you currently identify with the gender
identity you were assigned at birth?
Yes

3b

No

No

Prefer not to say

If ‘No’, are you:
Transgender

4.

Other

Prefer not to say

How would you describe your sexual orientation?

Heterosexual/straight

Gay

Lesbian

Bisexual

Prefer not to say

5.

Nonbinary

Other:………………………………………………..

Disability: Do you have any of the following (please tick all that apply):
Physical Impairment

Visual impairment

Learning Difficulty

Hearing impairment/deaf

Learning Disability

Long-term illness that
affects your daily life
Dementia

Autism/Asperger’s
Mental health condition

Prefer not to say

Please read the following statement …
6.

If you have ticked any of the boxes above, or you have cancer, diabetes or
HIV this would be classed as ‘disability’ under the legislation. Do you
consider yourself to be ‘disabled’?

Page 89

Page 9 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
Yes

7.

No

Prefer not to say

What is your religion/belief?

No
religion/belief
Muslim
Prefer not to say

8.

Christian

Hindu

Jewish

Sikh

Other religion/belief:
……………………………………..

Race/ethnicity (please note that Sikh and Jewish are collected in the
Religion/Belief Section above) – do you identify as:
Prefer not to say
Asian or Asian British
Indian
Chinese

Bangladeshi

Pakistani

Black

Other Asian background
………………………………………………………………

Black or Black British
African
British

Caribbean
Asian

Other black background
………………………………………….

Mixed Ethnic Background
White and Black
Caribbean
White and Asian

White and Black African
Other mixed background:
………………………………………………….

White
Welsh

Irish

Page 90

Scottish

Page 10 of 11

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item 9
English

Northern Irish

British

Other background: …………………………………………………........

Gypsy/Irish Traveller

Roma

Polish

Latvian

Portuguese

Page 91

Page 11 of 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item 10
Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel
Date:

Friday 11th March 2022

Title:

Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity –
Junction improvement at A59, Kenyon’s Lane

Report of:

Andrew Dunsmore. 07866176195, Andrew.Dunsmore@sefton.gov.uk

1.

Purpose of the Report

1.1

To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being developed
for proposed modifications to the A59 Northway junction with Kenyon’s Lane,
Maghull.

2.

Background

2.1

The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is to
coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and consultation, in
accordance with the standards for engagement and consultation.

3.

Junction Improvement at A59 Northway junction with Kenyon’s Lane,
Maghull.

3.1

In 2019 a submission was made to the Liverpool City Region Combined
Authority to seek funding to develop a Business Case for a number of highway
improvements on the A59 corridor through Maghull. This was one of the
‘Pipeline projects’ previously shared with Members. LCRCA didn’t approve
proposals to develop the entire corridor but did support improvements initially
to one of the junctions on the A59, at Liverpool Road North/Dover Road.

3.2

As the scheme was delivered under budget, agreement was sought to use extra
resources to fund improvements at the junction of the A59 with Damfield Lane.
The improvement to Dover Road were completed in May 2020 and Damfield
Lane in May 2021. Both schemes have been aimed at improving crossing
facilities for pedestrians and cyclists, improving safety and maintaining or
improving capacity.

3.3

Despite the improvements at both junctions, a number of junctions on the A59
remain difficult for pedestrians to cross and have no provision for cyclists. This
is the case at the junction of the A59 with Kenyon’s Lane. The proposed
residential development on the site to the north west of the junction will result
in addition traffic using the junction. Agreement in principle has been reached
with the developer to improve the western side of the junction which will use
some land within the development site to facilitate this improvement.

3.4

An agreement in principle has been reached with the developer for a financial
contribution to the improvements in addition to the transfer of land. The receipt
1

Page 93

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item 10

of funding and land will be dependent on Planning being secured. The proposes
are likely to be considered by Planning Committee in April.
3.5

With works programmed for this junction as a result of this development it
seemed an opportunity to upgrade the junction in its entirety. In May 2021 an
application was made for funding from the DFT Signal Maintenance Fund. This
bid was successful and grant of £250k secured for the delivery of signal
improvement junction and the junction with Hall Lane. This funding needs to
be by expended and claimed by March 2023.

3.6

In addition to the from the DfT Signal Fund and the developer’s contributions,
there is an opportunity to secure CRSTS funds form the KRN pot, for which a
Business Case is being developed. An indicative allocation of funding has been
identified against the scheme for delivery in year 1 of the settlement, i.e., by
March 2023.

3.7

A further important strand of work proposed for the A59 corridor is the creation
of a cycleway linking existing facilities at Switch Island to the borough boundary.
The design of these improvements is seen as one of the elements of work to
be delivered using the Capability Revenue Funding allocation, to be expended
in 2022/23. From this it is anticipated that funding for the delivery an element of
this work will be forthcoming from the Capability Fund capital allocation. The
improvements at Kenyon’s Lane and at any other junctions need to be
developed in the context of the cycle improvements.

3.8

It should be noted that in October 2021 a petition with 187 signatures was
received, forwarded by a Ward Councillor, asking for a safer pedestrian
crossing over the A59, to be introduced.

4.
4.1

The Consultation Process
A communications plan has been developed which sets out how the
engagement will be carried out (see Annex).
In addition to discussion with Ward Councillors the proposals involve the
following elements;
•

Article on the Council’s website with all the material available.

•

Information on Twitter and Facebook linking to the website article.

•

Letters and plans hand delivered to all the local residents,
businesses, local church and school, including using accessible
formats.

•

Utilisation of Your Sefton Your Say online platform to secure
feedback and comments.

2

Page 94

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item 10
5.

Legal Department Comments

5.1

Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans contained this
report and has no comments to make.

6.

Recommendations

6.1

The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to:
a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the proposed
junction improvement at A59 Northway and Kenyon’s Lane, Maghull

7.0

List of Annexes
Annex
Annex A

Title
Communication Plan

3

Page 95

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item 10

Annex A - A59 Northway/Kenyon’s Lane Communication Plan
A communications plan has been developed to manage the interaction with
stakeholders. Further stakeholders may be identified and contact details included as
the Plan is developed. The process of updating the communications plan will continue
throughout the design / construction process.
The plan will be separated into 3 main stages, ‘Design’, ‘Pre-Commencement on site’
and ‘During Construction’. The nature of the communication at each stage of the
project, the proposed frequency (if applicable) and method of communication will be
identified.
The Communications Plan does not include any statutory consultees associated with
the notification for road closures and Highway Permits Schemes. These stakeholders
will be notified as part of the Road closure and Highway Permits Schemes process.
The outline communications plan is shown in the table below. The intention is to
develop this plan in excel format with contact details (names, addresses, contact
information) included when known.
Method of
Consultation

Action

Stage

Stakeholder (if
known)

During the
Design

Housing Developer

Land purchase negotiation Direct contact via SMBC
Planning Contact

Cabinet Member

Advance warning of
scheme

Monthly Briefing

SMBC

Ward Councillors

Advance warning of
scheme

Letter

SMBC

Parish/Town
Councillors

Advance warning of
scheme

Letter

SMBC

Emergency Services

Advance warning of
scheme

Letter

SMBC

Statutory Authorities

C4 estimates / diversion
requirements

Letter

SMBC

Shell Garage A59

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter and site
meeting

SMBC

Merseytravel

Discussion/agreement on
Bus Stop positions

E-mail and
Teams meeting

SMBC

Maghull Town Council Negotiation/ discussion on
the impact of the scheme
on the Park

E-mail and
Teams meeting

SMBC

Type of Consultation

4

Page 96

Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item 10
Stage

Stakeholder (if
known)

Type of Consultation

Method of
Consultation

Action

PreResidents of Kenyon’s Advance Warning (start
Commence Lane, Ridgeway Drive, dates, traffic management
ment on site Coronation Road
etc)
etc,(to west of A59)

Letter

SMBC

Residents of Kenyon’s Advance Warning (start
Lane, Seymour Drive, dates, traffic management
Aragon Close etc,(to
etc)
asst of A59)

Letter

SMBC

Wider public
notification

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Signage / Social
Media / press
release

SMBC

St Thomas C of E
Primary School

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter

SMBC

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter

SMBC

Maghull Methodist
Church

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter

SMBC

Shell Garage A59

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter

SMBC

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter

SMBC

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter

SMBC

Cabinet Member

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Monthly Briefing

SMBC

Ward Councillors

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter

SMBC

Parish Councillors

Advance Warning (start
dates, traffic management
etc)

Letter

SMBC

Morton’s Diaries

Merseytravel
Housing Developer

5

Page 97

Agenda Item 10

Stage

Stakeholder (if
known)

Type of Consultation

Residents of Kenyon’s
During
Construction Lane, Ridgeway Drive, Ongoing consultation by
Coronation Road
Contractor
etc,(to west of A59)

Agenda Item 10
Method of
Consultation
Direct

Action

Contractor

Residents of Kenyon’s Ongoing consultation by
Lane, Seymour Drive, Contractor
Aragon Close etc,(to
asst of A59)

Direct

Contractor

St Thomas C of E
Primary School

Ongoing consultation by
Contractor

Direct

Contractor

Morton’s Diaries

Ongoing consultation by
Contractor

Direct

Contractor

Shell Garage A59

Ongoing consultation by
Contractor

Direct

Contractor

Housing Developer (if
on site)

Ongoing consultation by
Contractor

Direct

Contractor

Emergency Services

Ongoing progress /
updates of road closures

Direct

SMBC

General Public

Progress / Update

Social Media /
press release

SMBC

Cabinet Member

Progress / Update

Monthly Briefing

SMBC

Ward Councillors

Progress / Update

Monthly e-mail

SMBC

Parish Councillors

Progress / Update

Monthly e-mail

SMBC

Direct

Contractor

Residents of Kenyon’s Ongoing consultation by
Lane, Seymour Drive, Contractor
Aragon Close etc,(to
asst of A59)

6

Page 98

